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          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay.  Good

          3  morning, I am Councilwoman Madeline Provenzano, and

          4  I am chairing the committee on Housing and

          5  Buildings.

          6                 Today the Committee will conduct a

          7  hearing on seven bills related to technical and

          8  administrative procedures and processes, within the

          9  Department of Buildings.  Council Member David

         10  Weprin of Queens is the sponsor of all seven bills.

         11  He will not be here today, he is in Albany, so I

         12  will read his statement, after I read my statement.

         13                 The seven bills on the agenda today

         14  are as follows,

         15                 Intro 445, a local law to amend the

         16  administrative code of the City of New York, in

         17  relation to appeals for approval of applications and

         18  plans.

         19                 Intro number 446, a local law to

         20  amend the administrative code of the City of New

         21  York, in relation to the appeals of rejections of an

         22  application for a certificate of occupancy.

         23                 Intro 447, a local law to amend the

         24  New York City Charter, in relation to the

         25  Promulgation of Department of Buildings Legal,
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          2  Administrative, Operational and Technical Policy and

          3  Procedure Notices.

          4                 Intro number 448, a local law to

          5  amend the administrative code of the City of New

          6  York, in relation to revenues and expenditures of

          7  the Department of Buildings for plan examinations

          8  and applications for certificates of occupancy.

          9                 449, a local law to amend the

         10  administrative code of the City of New York, in

         11  relation to education of homeowners.

         12                 Intro 450, a local law to amend the

         13  administrative code of the City of New York, in

         14  relation to certificates of occupancy.

         15                 Intro 451, a local law to amend the

         16  administrative code of the City of New York, in

         17  relation to filing for certificates of occupancy.

         18                 In brief, the bills can be summarized

         19  as follows:

         20                 445 establishes an appeal process for

         21  the rejection of applications and plans for work

         22  permits submitted to the Department of Buildings.

         23                 446 establishes an appeal process for

         24  the rejection of any application for a certificate

         25  of occupancy, that was rejected by a Department of
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          2  Buildings inspector.

          3                 447 would expand the definition of

          4   "rule" to include Legal, Administrative,

          5  Operational and Technical Policy and Procedure

          6  Notices promulgated by the Department of Buildings,

          7  so that these notices would be subject to the city-

          8  wide Administrative Procedure Act.

          9                 Intro 448 would establish new

         10  reporting requirements concerning the revenue and

         11  expenditures of the Department of Buildings, with

         12  regard to plan examinations and applications for

         13  certificates of occupancy.

         14                 Intro 449 would establish new

         15  reporting requirements concerning the most common

         16  violations for one and two family homeowners.  It

         17  would also establish an Educational Outreach Program

         18  for the general public and for homeowners, regarding

         19  the same.

         20                 Intro 450 would provide a definition

         21  for the term "conforms substantially", for the

         22  purpose of issuing a certificate of occupancy by the

         23  Department of Buildings.  The term would mean,

         24  completed to such a point that the premises are

         25  habitable and safe for occupancy.
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          2                 And finally, 451 would provide that

          3  all applications for certificates of occupancy and

          4  accompanying papers, be examined within ten calendar

          5  days, after their submission to the Department of

          6  Buildings.  That will never happen.  The bill also

          7  provides that any related inspections that are

          8  required to be conducted by the Department of

          9  Buildings, would be made upon a submission of a

         10  statement of compliance by an architect, engineer,

         11  or project supervisor.

         12                 The committee expects to hear from

         13  the Department of Buildings, the real estate

         14  industry and others interested in these legislative

         15  items.

         16                 Anyone that would like to testify

         17  today on any of these bills, please sign in with the

         18  Sergeant- at- Arms.

         19                 I am joined by Council Member James

         20  Oddo, on my right, welcome.  And on my left, by

         21  Council Member Tony Avella and Councilwoman, Gale

         22  Brewer.

         23                 I will read Council Member, David

         24  Weprin's statement.

         25                 I would first like to thank my
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          2  colleague, Chairwoman Madeline Provenzano, for her

          3  leadership in bringing these bills to a hearing.

          4                 The goal of the Department of

          5  Buildings and the Building Code, is to assist

          6  homeowners in maintaining the safety and structural

          7  strength of their buildings, as well as to respond

          8  to the needs of building and homeowners.  While the

          9  Department is continually upgrading its response

         10  system, I believe there are areas in which it can

         11  improve and be held more accountable to the City.

         12  The new regulations set forth in Intros 445 through

         13  451, will help insure that the Department of

         14  Buildings will be more responsive, and better able

         15  to prevent building disasters in the future.

         16                 First, due to the lack of time

         17  constraints for the review of plans, an appeals of

         18  decisions by the Department of Buildings, building

         19  projects can be delayed for months, resulting in

         20  additional expenses to the projects, which are

         21  inevitably passed along to the future homeowner.

         22  This legislation will rectify this problem,

         23  codifying the process followed by the Department of

         24  Buildings, and placing constraints on the length of

         25  time that the Department can take in order to review
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          2  and decide appeals.

          3                 Second, the Department of Buildings

          4  receives in revenue, approximately $20 million

          5  dollars, more than its entire budget.  The revenue

          6  is in the form of user fees that are supposed to be

          7  used for the patrons of services at the Department.

          8  Any amount that results in excess revenue, means

          9  that the Department is imposing an improper tax.

         10  The proposed legislation requires that the

         11  Commissioner of the Department provide an accounting

         12  of the revenue collected by the Department and its

         13  expenditures, every six months.  If upon reporting

         14  the required information, the amount of expenditures

         15  is less than 90 percent of the Department's

         16  revenues, then the Commissioner must raise spending,

         17  so that anticipate revenues match expenditures.

         18                 It is my belief that there are

         19  several areas in which the Department could increase

         20  its spending.  As Chairman of the Council Finance

         21  Committee, I hear every year that the Department of

         22  Buildings is in need of more inspectors.  If the

         23  Department were allowed to keep the almost $20

         24  million dollars in annual revenues it receives,

         25  rather than depositing that money back into the
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          2  general fund, those inspectors could be hired.  More

          3  inspectors will allow the DOB not only to react to

          4  hazardous conditions and complaints, but also to be

          5  proactive in preventing dangerous conditions and

          6  enforcing the law.  More enforcement could result in

          7  additional revenue to the City.

          8                 Third, the process by which the

          9  public is informed of changes to both Department of

         10  Building's regulations and the zoning and building

         11  codes, is non- existent.  Two of the seven bills

         12  being heard today improve the public review and

         13  notification procedure.  Changes to Department and

         14  Buildings regulations should be subject to public

         15  comment, to ensure that inappropriate regulations

         16  are not approved.  Changes to the zoning and

         17  building code are already subject to public review,

         18  but are often never communicated to the public.

         19  Misunderstandings of the zoning and building codes

         20  lead to improper permits, and even construction.

         21  Today's legislation requires that the Department of

         22  Buildings compile a list of most common building

         23  violations, and educate the public about them, and

         24  ways to avoid them.  Additionally, homeowners will

         25  be alerted to changes in zoning and building codes.
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          2                 If passed, the new regulations set

          3  forth by these bills, will help ensure that the

          4  Department of Buildings remains responsive and

          5  accountable to the needs of building and homeowners.

          6  With the Department able to spend the revenues it

          7  receives to hire more inspectors, more building

          8  violations can be discovered and rectified, and

          9  dangerous conditions prevented.  Moreover, an

         10  increase in public notification will make the

         11  community more aware of common violations and code

         12  changes, and therefore better able to handle issues

         13  and concerns.  Ultimately, this legislation will

         14  benefit the City of New York.

         15                 That is Council Member Weprin's

         16  statement.

         17                 Before we begin, Council Member

         18  Avella has asked if he could make a statement.  Go

         19  ahead.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Thank you,

         21  Madam Chair. First, let me compliment you on the

         22  work that you have done as Chair of this committee.

         23  It has been a very busy committee, on many city-

         24  wide building issues.  And the criticism I am about

         25  to levy, has nothing to do with you.  But I am
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          2  absolutely livid, furious, that these seven bills

          3  are on today's schedule.  I know myself, I have a

          4  number of very important pieces of legislation, that

          5  have been not been able to get on the agenda for

          6  several years, because of the heavy docket of this

          7  committee.  And I think that it is disgraceful, that

          8  these bills, seven of them, which were just recently

          9  introduced, are getting a hearing.  Some of them are

         10  extremely bad pieces of legislation, and will never

         11  move any place, in my opinion.  But, it is very

         12  unfortunate that your committee, the precious time

         13  that you have, is being taken up today, to hear

         14  these bills.  And I know it is not you, but I think

         15  something has got to change, because I know, myself,

         16  I have four or five pieces of legislation that

         17  directly impact residential communities, would

         18  improve the way Department of Buildings operates,

         19  and stop a lot of the illegal construction in the

         20  City of New York, that have not been able to be put

         21  on the public agenda, because of your busy calendar.

         22    So, I am really making this statement because I am

         23  furious that this, the time of this committee, is

         24  being taken up for this legislature, which somehow

         25  is moved ahead of the normal process.  And in
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          2  protest, I intend to get up and leave.  And I am

          3  sorry, Madam Chair, this is not directed at you, but

          4  I really think this is disgraceful.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you, I

          6  think, council member.  I actually have reviewed

          7  your bills, and Terzah has summarized them for me,

          8  and they are on my desk, and I make no excuses, had

          9  our private conversation and you know what is going

         10  on, so, thank you for being here, and calm down, it

         11  will be okay.

         12                 Department of Buildings, we have

         13  Stephen Kramer, who is the Chief of Staff for

         14  Commissioner Lancaster.  Welcome.  And by his side

         15  is Donald.  Donald, you have to say your name if you

         16  are going to speak because I never do your name

         17  right, even though I, you know, should.

         18                 MR. RANCHTY (phonetic): I will not be

         19  testifying, but Donald Ranchty, Director of Inner

         20  Governmental Affairs and Community Relations.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Say it again,

         22  because she --

         23                 MR. RANCHTY: It is Donald Ranchty.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Go ahead.

         25                 MR. KRAMER: Good morning, Chair
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          2  Provenzano and members of the committee.  My name is

          3  Stephen Kramer and I am Chief of Staff of the New

          4  York City Department of Buildings, and I am

          5  appearing here on behalf of Commission Lancaster,

          6  who is not available this morning.  I am appearing

          7  with Donald Ranchty, the Director of Inner

          8  Governmental Affairs of the Department.

          9                 I am appearing today to testify

         10  concerning Intros 445 through 451, which impact upon

         11  several areas of the Department's operations.  I

         12  want to thank you for the opportunity to testify,

         13  and to explain to you the Department's views on

         14  these proposals.  I will order my remarks by

         15  following the seven bills in numerical order.

         16                 In the case of Intros 445 and 446,

         17  both bills speak to the process by which an

         18  applicant may appeal a decision made by one of the

         19  Department's borough offices.  Intro 445 is

         20  addressed to appeals of disapproval of plan approval

         21  applications.  446 is addressed to appeals of

         22  rejections of an application for a certificate of

         23  occupancy.

         24                 The Department has always maintained

         25  a policy for appeals decisions by more than one
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          2  official, within each borough office.  And if

          3  necessary, two, the executive office and 280

          4  Broadway.  Each borough office has a chief plan

          5  examiner, a code and zoning specialist, a Deputy

          6  Commissioner and a Borough Commissioner, who are

          7  available for appeals of objections to plans

          8  submitted by applicants.  Indeed, one of the

          9  initiatives that we have implemented during the last

         10  year, has been use of a standardized objection

         11  sheet.  Plan examiners are now typing objections,

         12  and the objection sheet is available by email to

         13  applicants who provide an email address.  As

         14  industry and examiners become more familiar with

         15  conducting business by email, we envision a

         16  significant improvement in the speed with which

         17  rejections are resolved.

         18                 When an applicant believes he will

         19  not get recourse to the removal of an objection, or

         20  the resolution of it at the borough office, we also

         21  have a standardized procedure for appeal to the

         22  Deputy Commissioner for Technical Affairs in the

         23  central office located at 280 Broadway.  An

         24  applicant must only fax his or her request for

         25  reconsideration to the Deputy Commissioner's office,
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          2  and an appointment will be promptly scheduled for

          3  review.  As you might expect, the more specific and

          4  concrete the presentation of the application for

          5  reconsideration is given, the more expeditious the

          6  review.  Many indeed can be resolved without even a

          7  meeting. The Deputy Commissioner works closely with

          8  the Department's Executive Engineer and with the

          9  five borough Commissioners, with whom she meets on a

         10  bi-weekly basis.

         11                 An additional improvement to our

         12  internal appeals process, has been a very remarkable

         13  technological system which we have instituted over

         14  the last six months, called PENS, the Plan

         15  Examination Notification System.  On October 1st,

         16  Buildings and DoITT, the Department of Information

         17  Technology, launched a new appointment system that

         18  enables users to schedule plan exam appointments,

         19  virtually around the clock, seven days a week.  The

         20  building industry schedules plan examinations with

         21  the Department of Buildings, to get approval of

         22  construction plans.  Using Siebel technology and the

         23  resources of 311, PENS has substantially improved

         24  customer service and agency productivity.

         25                 In the past, customers seeking plan
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          2  examination appointments, relied on four call takers

          3  at the Department to serve them.  Appointments could

          4  be scheduled only two weeks in advance. This led to

          5  very long wait times, and frequent busy signals for

          6  callers.  Though the telephone lines were open form

          7  eight to four, 70 percent of the calls were made

          8  between eight and ten, booking up all the

          9  appointments early in the day.  Because scheduling

         10  was so difficult, customers frequently placed

         11  appointments for phantom jobs, expecting them to use

         12  them for a valid job, later on.  This led to many

         13  no- shows, and cancellations of appointments, and

         14  the plan examiners would essentially be sitting,

         15  waiting for an appointment to come.

         16                 By moving our function of setting up

         17  plan exam appointments to 311, customers have now

         18  extended hours to make appointments, and a pool of

         19  80 call takers to assist them.

         20                 Another improvement is that customers

         21  can schedule appointments 60 days in advance.  And

         22  because larger projects require several reviews,

         23  with one telephone call, customers may schedule up

         24  to three appointments on different dates, for the

         25  same application.  Another customer friendly feature
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          2  of this system, is that it automatically sends an

          3  email confirmation of the appointment to customers.

          4                 We believe that the PENS systems has

          5  already made substantial improvements in scheduling

          6  appointments and appeals. Even though we have had a

          7  very large increase in the number of plans being

          8  reviewed by our staff as construction has surged in

          9  the City over the last five years, wait times for

         10  appointments have been substantially reduced.

         11  Appeals to the Borough Commissioners, Deputy

         12  Commissioners, and Chief Plan Examiners, may be

         13  scheduled by simply faxing a request to the borough

         14  office.  This eliminates the need for a formalized

         15  statutory review process, provided for in these

         16  bills.  In short, the problems to which Intros 445

         17  and 446 are addressed, had been mitigated by

         18  advances that the Department has made over the last

         19  three years.

         20                 Turning now to Intro 447, this bill

         21  amends the City Charter, in relation to the

         22  promulgation of Department Policy and Procedure

         23  Notices, which are known as PPN's, or sometimes

         24  TPPN's, which is short for Technical Policy and

         25  Procedure Notice. Historically, the Department has
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          2  issued these as a way to create uniform delivery of

          3  services across the City in each of the five borough

          4  offices, which historically had a tendency to act

          5  somewhat independently of one another, to respond to

          6  local conditions.  They are essentially used as

          7  guidance to industry and our staff, to set up

          8  uniform procedures, and to explain what those

          9  procedures are. Because all PPN's vary from one

         10  another, there is a fundamental flaw in treating

         11  them alike for CAPA purposes, that is the City

         12  Administrative Procedure Act, which is what this

         13  bill proposes. For example, one would be hard-

         14  pressed to see any purpose in subjecting to CAPA

         15  review, the Department's procedures for the use of a

         16  form letter on permit revocations, or its directions

         17  to staff as to how to enter an access warrant in

         18  BIS, Building Information System, or its

         19  transmission to staff of a new policy, unlimited use

         20  of City resources, all subjects of recent PPN's.

         21                 Yet Intro 447 would do just that.  In

         22  general PPN's are issued as guidelines for internal

         23  operations, making it difficult to see how the

         24  public might benefit from the application of CAPA's

         25  notice and hearing requirements.

                                                            19

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 In those cases where a PPN provides

          3  explanatory guidance to the public, the Department

          4  does operate in a manner that makes Intro 447

          5  unnecessary.  Under Commissioner Lancaster, our goal

          6  has been to work closely with industry, and with

          7  members of the public, that are affected by our

          8  regulations.  So drafts of all PPN's are now sent to

          9  affected industry groups, and are discussed at

         10  borough advisory meetings, that are held monthly by

         11  the borough Commissioner's prior issuance.  She has

         12  made a commitment to involve industry, and to

         13  involve stakeholders, and we believe that

         14  substantial progress has been made in this area.  We

         15  have put all PPN's on the web for easy public

         16  access, and they can be searched by word or phrase.

         17  We believe that these procedures are adequate to

         18  address the concerns, addressed by 447.

         19                 Intro 448 is a bill that would

         20  require the Department to reduce fees or expenses,

         21  to reduce fees or increase expenses, to ensure that

         22  its expenditures equal a minimum of 90 percent of

         23  its revenues.  We believe that both the premise of

         24  this bill, that the expenses associated with the

         25  Departments activities, is substantial, yes, in the
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          2  fees it collects, and the proposed solution,

          3  requiring the Commissioner increase expenses or

          4  decrease fees, are both highly problematic.

          5                 In the first case, only including the

          6  direct cost funded in the Department's budget,

          7  excludes the Department's very substantial indirect

          8  costs, and I have explained this to industry in

          9  discussions in the past, so I am somewhat surprised

         10  that this bill is here.  But these indirect costs

         11  are very substantial.  They include fringe benefits,

         12  which the controller's office calculates as

         13  approximately 26 percent of employee salaries,

         14  pensions, health care, whatnot.  Other City agencies

         15  that support the Department, which include the Law

         16  Department, the Department of Information and

         17  Technological Services, Office of Management and

         18  Budget, the Mayor's office, what have you, and of

         19  course the cost of our facilities, the impeded rent,

         20  the energy, and the custodial staff for our

         21  buildings.  These are all very substantial, and

         22  really balance significantly, the expenses and

         23  revenues of the agency.

         24                 On the other hand the action of the

         25  Commissioner would be required to take under 448,
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          2  contradicts the City Charter and sections of the

          3  administrative code, relating to budget adoption.

          4  Under the Charter, the commissioner does not have

          5  the authority to raise expenditures so that all

          6  anticipated expenditures match anticipated revenues.

          7    Rather, expenditures are authorized through a

          8  process that includes a proposal by the Mayor, an

          9  adoption of level expenditures by the City Council,

         10  which are signed by the Mayor into law.  It would be

         11  rather unusual, indeed I think it would be unique,

         12  to give one Commissioner authority to increase the

         13  agency's budget without Mayoral and Council

         14  oversight. In addition, if the Departments fees were

         15  to be reduced so that anticipated revenues matched

         16  the anticipated expenditures for the following six

         17  months.  Fees for projects filed after the

         18  assessment date, would be less than the fees

         19  collected prior to the assessment date.  It is

         20  independent of what the actual cost for review of

         21  that project were, and causing an inequity to

         22  applicants.  In addition, these fees are prescribed

         23  in the administrative code and by rule, which the

         24  Commissioner does not have the unilateral authority

         25  to change.  This is in addition to the fact that it
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          2  is simply not feasible to change administrative

          3  code, and implement these changes every six months.

          4                 Finally, the proposed law does not

          5  take into account the seasonal nature of

          6  construction cycles.  Surges, or drops in

          7  construction activity, can and do often

          8  significantly have impacted revenue projections, but

          9  may not be indicative of long term trends, or long

         10  term costs.

         11                 I will turn now to 449, which relates

         12  to the, or is entitled the Education of Homeowners.

         13  In recent years, the Department has undertaken a

         14  massive effort to improve our capacity to distribute

         15  information, including electronically, and on the

         16  web.  Intro 449 would require the Department to

         17  issue an annual report of most common violations

         18  affecting dwellings and occupancy group J- 3, as

         19  public outreach on a number of other safety related

         20  issues.  The Department has always understood the

         21  need for delivery of safety information to the

         22  public, and takes pride in its service of that end,

         23  both on our website and through our public safety

         24  brochures.  BIS on the web went on line a little

         25  more than two years ago.  It provides information to
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          2  the public, on virtually every property in the City

          3  of New York.  These properties number over 950,000.

          4  We can mention that we have between 25 and 30 sheets

          5  of information, on each of those properties, which

          6  is available on the web.  So we are talking about 30

          7  million pieces of information, simply going to our

          8  website, which are available from everyone's home.

          9  Completes violations and permits and most recently,

         10  certificates of occupancy, are all on display, and

         11  may be accessed by anyone with internet access, 24

         12  hours a day, seven days a week. The enormous

         13  undertaking of putting this on the web and making it

         14  available to people with computers, to libraries,

         15  and schools, has proved to be a most worth while

         16  investment.  We are currently getting over 250,000

         17  page views a day.  We have presented workshops and

         18  training sessions to numerous civic organizations

         19  and community boards.  And the response has been

         20  uniformly enthusiastic.

         21                 The ability for all citizens to check

         22  a property to determine its lawful use, to see if a

         23  complaint has been lodged, to see if the complaint

         24  has been addressed, or a violation issued,

         25  represents an extraordinary citizen empowerment.
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          2                 In addition, BIS on the web provides

          3  a list of complaints received by community board and

          4  their disposition. While these queries do not

          5  specifically address J- 3 occupancies, and I am

          6  sorry to say that BIS does not have the ability to

          7  identify property by occupancy code, they do provide

          8  an enormous amount of information to the public.

          9  However, rather than assume that I fully understand

         10  the problem this bill is trying to resolve, we would

         11  like to get an additional understanding of your

         12  concerns, so that we may craft a targeted solution.

         13                 Obviously, homeowner information, and

         14  outreach, and safety is a very, very primary goal of

         15  ours, and it is something that we would certainly

         16  like to work with you to improve.

         17                 Finally Intro 450 and 451, amend the

         18  code in relation to the issuance of certificates of

         19  occupancy.  Intro 450, for all intent in purposes,

         20  collapses the distinction between TCO's and C of

         21  O's.  It would essentially enable any building to

         22  obtain a final C of O, if it were safe to inhabit,

         23  even if the other requirements of law, such as the

         24  zoning resolution's requirement of the planting of

         25  trees and shrubbery or other natural features, were
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          2  not completed.  And if pavements, sidewalks and

          3  streets were not installed, and if accessory

          4  buildings, such as garages were not completed, or if

          5  surveys were not filed.  The host of non- safety

          6  issues that have often been completed after the

          7  temporary C of O is issued.  We know of no

          8  enforcement mechanism, other than withholding of the

          9  final C of O, that can ensure that these final

         10  elements be completed.  In this context, we would

         11  like to note that over the last 15 months, at the

         12  urging of the Mayor, the Department has phased down

         13  the use of TCO's in Staten Island very dramatically,

         14  and it was in that borough, that they were most

         15  heavily relied on.  Virtually, the only TCO's that

         16  are now even issued there, are issued for seasonal

         17  reasons, when the necessary plantings or pavings

         18  cannot be completed, or in cluster developments when

         19  paving is infeasible until the last home is built.

         20                 The Department is trying to evolve

         21  into an agency that is more streamlined and an

         22  efficient place to do business.  I have been very

         23  proud to work there, and with the Commissioner, I

         24  think we have made a lot of progress over the last

         25  three years. However, these bills appear to hamper
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          2  that effort, by imposing somewhat unwieldy and

          3  redundant procedures upon the Department, that I

          4  think address issues that we have already solved.

          5                 Thank you and I would be very happy

          6  to answer any questions and discuss these with you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you

          8  very much.  I just want to remind people that if you

          9  want to testify, you should sign in.  Okay.

         10                 I think Council Member Brewer has

         11  some questions.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Sure, I have a

         13  question regarding, I think the first couple of

         14  bills when you talked about expeditious for the

         15  standardized objection sheet, and I just wanted to

         16  know what that means.  In other words, could you

         17  give us some time lines?  And then my other question

         18  in general is, I know that for one of the processes,

         19  or maybe it is all, there is an advisory group, I

         20  think in terms of the issue of the appeal process, I

         21  think that was it.  In any case, could you just

         22  tell, when the advisory board meets, if there is

         23  one, for which aspect of the process?  And when you

         24  say that there are expeditious processing, how does

         25  that work?  And I am, of course, technologically
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          2  fairly sophisticated, look at your site all the

          3  time, if I was renovating, I would certainly use

          4  your technology.  But if one does not, how does one

          5  get an appointment, those kinds of questions?

          6                 MR. KRAMER: First, and in so far as

          7  time lines is concerned, under the under PENS, the

          8  waiting time to get an appointment with most

          9  planning examiners, is under a week, it is, you can

         10  call in and get a appointment scheduled very often,

         11  within two or three days.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: In all five

         13  boroughs?

         14                 MR. KRAMER: In all five boroughs.

         15  There are certain plan examiners who have heavier

         16  loads than others, we are trying to smooth them out.

         17    We recently took some steps, for example in

         18  Brooklyn, where we noticed -- what this system does

         19  is, it enables us to look and see which plan

         20  examiners have too, essentially have too heavy a

         21  load and perhaps they have too heavy, they may have

         22  some very complex projects.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Some people

         24  like some plan examiners and not others, can you --

         25                 MR. KRAMER: What this system does is,
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          2  it is the Department which determines which plan

          3  examiner is assigned to any particular project.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: So, how many

          5  expediters are still hanging around?

          6                 MR. KRAMER: I am sure there are a

          7  lot, but we have attempted, and I think we have to

          8  some extent, cut in to their business,

          9  substantially.  But there is obviously certain

         10  expediters who, you know, have a great deal of

         11  knowledge about the code and are very proficient in

         12  code and are very helpful, and others who

         13  essentially function as clerks, moving papers from

         14  one floor of the Department to another.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay,

         16                 MR. KRAMER: In terms of the advisory

         17  group, I believe each Borough Commissioner meets

         18  with the advisory group on a monthly basis.  In

         19  addition, the Commissioner tries to do so, as well,

         20  with both the Building Industry Advisory Council.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: So, each

         22  month, you said, or each borough?  Each month, each

         23  borough?

         24                 MR. KRAMER: I believe each Borough

         25  Commissioner meets with an advisory group from its
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          2  borough every month.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Could we get a

          4  list at some point, Madam Chair, of who is on those

          5  advisory boards and when they meet?

          6                 MR. KRAMER: Surely.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay.  And my

          8  other question was, say for instance you are not

          9  using the net, can you go through 311, in other

         10  words, how do you operate?

         11                 MR. KRAMER: Right, you would call 311

         12  and you would speak to a person, these appointments

         13  are actually not made by, are not made by,

         14  automatically, they are made by calling 311, and

         15  then being assigned to one of the members of the

         16  building groups within 311.  We also maintain access

         17  at each of the borough offices.  For example, in

         18  Queens, which is I think probably the borough where

         19  individual homeowners come to us the most, it is an

         20  extraordinary active place.  You can go in --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Everything in

         22  Queens is active.

         23                 MR. KRAMER: -- And you can basically

         24  get a number and the Borough Commissioner or the

         25  Deputy Borough Commissioner walk through on a
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          2  regular basis, the open public area, and walk up to

          3  people and handle problems on an individual basis,

          4  and assign them to plan examiners and what have you.

          5    In addition, we have had open houses, although

          6  those have been primarily designed to address people

          7  with violation problems, or outstanding C of O

          8  problems, as opposed to new building plans.  For new

          9  buildings, we encourage the use of regular office

         10  hours.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: So when you

         12  dial 311, you are able to make an appointment?

         13                 MR. Kramer: With the plan examiner

         14  for, if that is what you are --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay, that is

         16  24/7, but is the Building Department Legacy System,

         17  or individuals who are working there, they are there

         18  24/7 also, or you just work through a regular 311

         19  person?

         20                 MR. KRAMER: No, the Building

         21  Department, the people at the Building Department,

         22  at 280 Broadway, where we also have a telephone call

         23  center, those people are there for regular business

         24  hours.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay, so just
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          2  help me, when you dial 311, you make an appointment,

          3  but that is able to be done 24/7, or do you only do

          4  it when your offices are open?  I am just trying to

          5   --

          6                 MR. KRAMER: 24/7.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay.  I am a

          8  little confused.

          9                 MR. KRAMER: There are certain types

         10  of appointments. For example, if you want a plumbing

         11  inspection. A plumbing inspection would have to made

         12  during normal business hours.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: When your

         14  people are there?

         15                 MR. KRAMER: Right.  But a plan

         16  examination appointment is 24/7.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: How do people

         18  know this system?  Is it, say, maybe I should know

         19  this, but does this process exist on your website,

         20  in other words, this what you do if you want a

         21  plumbing, or does it just sort of say, call 311?

         22                 MR. KRAMER: It is, actually, it is on

         23  our website, and we have a section on our website

         24  entitled, What's New at the Department of Buildings?

         25    And every one of our new procedures is
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          2  highlighted.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: So basically,

          4  what you outline today in terms of the process, you

          5  feel is adequately outlined on your sight?

          6                 MR. KRAMER: Yes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay.  And are

          8  your advisory board members listed on your sight?

          9                 MR. KRAMER: I do not believe so.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: But they could

         11  be.

         12                 MR. KRAMER: Yes.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you,

         14  Madam Chair.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Just to stay

         16  on that advisory board thing for awhile, how was the

         17  advisory board set up? I mean, is it, you know, are

         18  there builders on there, or --

         19                 MR. KRAMER: We have actually several

         20  different ways of outreach to the community, but we

         21  meet on a regular basis, the Borough Commissioners

         22  meet on a regular basis with architects and

         23  engineers, plumbers, electricians, what have you.

         24  The people who are at the Department on a regular

         25  basis filing, with whom we interact on technical
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          2  matters.  In addition, we have, under Donald's

          3  direction, a great deal of outreach to the community

          4  boards, and each of the community boards, we have a

          5  borough representative in every borough.  We

          6  actually have a new person coming on, we hope, in

          7  the next few weeks of Manhattan, but currently --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: We know

          9  already.

         10                 MR. KRAMER: Right.  Corin Lindau is

         11  currently handling that for us.  And we go to all

         12  community boards, when requested.  We go to borough,

         13  to the borough boards, as well, of course.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Does each

         15  borough have its own advisory board, or is there one

         16  advisory board that sort of a traveling act?

         17                 MR. KRAMER: Each borough has its own.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Has its own?

         19                 MR. KRAMER: Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Now this

         21  person that you said each borough also has, which is

         22  a community something, something --

         23                 MR. KRAMER: Yes, a community liaison.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Donald, who

         25  is that for the Bronx?
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          2                 MR. KRAMER: It is Jacqueline Morgan,

          3  Jackie Morgan.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Oh, okay, she

          5  is the one that works for the commission, that when

          6  I call, I get Jackie?

          7                 MR. KRAMER: Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay.

          9                 MR. KRAMER: Yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Plan

         11  examiners, do you need more plan examiners?  Are you

         12  looking for plan examiners?  Do you have enough plan

         13  examiners?

         14                 MR. KRAMER: Well, recently, over the

         15  last year, I think we have added 20 additional plan

         16  examiners, which I think has substantially, really

         17  been quite instrumental in reducing the backlog,

         18  that I think these bills were addressed to.  And

         19  that has really been a wonderful achievement, both

         20  the addition of plan examiners and the addition of

         21  inspectors, has really been grateful to the council

         22  for assisting us, in that, along with the support on

         23  the IT side, which has been the other major increase

         24  in our expenditures.

         25                 In terms of additional plan
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          2  examiners, I think we do see room for additional

          3  growth there.  We have, I mean the increase just in

          4  the number of applications is quite extraordinary,

          5  in all boroughs, from the Bronx to Brooklyn.   I

          6  think last year we had over 60,000 construction

          7  permits, and I think that the figure I heard the

          8  Commissioner use the other day, I did not bring that

          9  statistic with me, perhaps next week at the budget

         10  hearings, I am sure she will have it.  There has

         11  been an increase in some 30 percent, or 38 percent,

         12  I think, in construction applications over the last

         13  three or four years.  And the number of plans

         14  reviewed, has increased substantially.  I think that

         15  we will be asking, over time, for additional plan

         16  examiners, assuming that the construction cycle

         17  continues, but we do think that, with the additional

         18  resources we have been given, and the increased use

         19  of IT, and the efficiencies that we have made, that

         20  we are actually at a level that enables us to create

         21  service levels at a reasonable spot.  But I am not

         22  going to say that we are not going to be asking for

         23  more, because I suspect that, over time, either to

         24  look at more plans more closely, audit more plans,

         25  and to deal with more problems, that we will be
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          2  asking for more.  But at the moment, I think we have

          3  made a great deal of achievement.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Council

          5  member, do you have any questions?

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you.  So,

          7  Mr. Kramer, the administration opposes each of these

          8  bills?

          9                 MR. KRAMER: That is correct.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Do you oppose

         11  them equally, in terms of your level of, in your

         12  level of rank, or your level of animosity, or your

         13  level of displeasure?  Some worse than others, or

         14  are they all equally bad, in the opinion of the

         15  administration?

         16                 MR. KRAMER: No rank or no animosity.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: But are some

         18  worse than others or --

         19                 MR. KRAMER: I think that the bills

         20  are, to a great extent, address some legitimate

         21  problems, and particular legitimate perceptions of

         22  problems, but that they are somewhat out of date.

         23  And that, I think that what one -- when the

         24  Commissioner came in, three years ago, we knew, and

         25  the Mayor knew, that the Department was broken.  And
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          2  the Mayor told the Commissioner, fix the Department.

          3    We are not finished fixing the Department.  We

          4  have a long ways to go and we know that.  But we

          5  think we have made a great deal of improvement and,

          6  how did we set our priorities? Well, the priority

          7  number one, was to deal with corruption and the

          8  perception of corruption.  The second one was, the

          9  second thing we did was, we went to industry and we

         10  said to industry, what are our greatest problems?

         11  The third thing we did, is we went to community

         12  boards and we said, where, how can we help you?  And

         13  as a result, the changes that we have made over the

         14  last three years, have been addresses specifically

         15  to the problems industry and the community boards

         16  have raised, vis- a- vis industry, for example the

         17  plan examination notification system, was a problem

         18  that at every single meeting, in every borough, the

         19  commissioner had, the industry complained about

         20  that, and it was just extraordinary that this system

         21  of trying to make telephone appointments and using

         22  expediters to make appointments, to call between

         23  eight and ten in the morning to have special phones

         24  that you could push a redial button on.  And without

         25  large firms with large staff resources to monopolize
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          2  the system, was something that she wanted to address

          3  and she did, at industry's insistence.  Similarly,

          4  the problems that homeowners had of getting

          5  information on violations and getting information on

          6  certificate of occupancy, and it is the status of

          7  permits, and would have to send people down, or come

          8  down and spend time at the borough, and for busy

          9  working schedules, it was a problem which was

         10  repeated regularly.  And that is why we have put so

         11  much effort into putting BIS on the web up.

         12                 So I am not going to say that these

         13  bills are addressed to problems that were not there,

         14  and to some extent, problems that do not exist.  But

         15  I think that a better way of dealing with these

         16  problems, is to continue to have the dialogue with

         17  us, for industry groups and for citizen groups, to

         18  have the dialogue with us, and we listen because

         19  that is our reason for being, is to respond to

         20  company needs.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Well, clearly

         22  one of the problems that has existed in the past and

         23  perhaps continues today, is the issue of C of O's

         24  and getting a timely C of O, in speaking in terms of

         25  Intro 450.  Well, could you give us numbers, if not
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          2  now, give us a sense of how many outstanding jobs we

          3  still have in terms of C of O's that have not been

          4  issued, and has the length of time that homeowners

          5  need, that homeowners are asked to endure without a

          6  C of O, have we shortened that?  And can you give us

          7  a sense of --

          8                      MR. KRAMER: It is difficult to

          9  set benchmarks, but let me give you an example of

         10  one of the things that we have done and this one is

         11  actually addressed to a problem in Staten Island.

         12  About two years ago, when the Staten Island

         13  Redevelopment Task Force or Development Task Force

         14  was established, one of the complaints that we heard

         15  many times, was regarding the Department's practice

         16  of issuing temporary certificates of occupancy, and

         17  not final.  And the reason that we learned that we

         18  were doing that, and it was for a reason, it was

         19  because final construction, final electrical, final

         20  plumbing inspections, could not be scheduled in a

         21  timely manner.  So what we did is we sent our, what

         22  we then called our project MICA, our business re-

         23  engineering people, over there to look and see what

         24  the problem with it was, because it was certainly

         25  loud and clear that there was a problem.  And what
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          2  we did is, we re- organized the staff on Staten

          3  Island and also added some additional staff with

          4  your assistance, so that now you can get an

          5  electrical inspection, a builder can get an

          6  electrical inspection, can get a plumbing

          7  inspection, and then be set up to get the final

          8  construction sign off, in a reasonably quick manner.

          9    And I think, either it was December 1st, 2003, we

         10  began the TCO phase down.  And at this point in

         11  time, we can probably provide you a chart which

         12  would show you the TCO's are now the exception,

         13  rather than the rule, in Staten Island.  And I think

         14  we have less than 100 TCO's that are outstanding

         15  since the beginning of the phase down, whereas we

         16  probably issued thousands of final C of O's during

         17  that.  And the TCO's that we are issuing, are just

         18  for, let us say during the winter season when you

         19  cannot do the plantings.  Overall, the contractors

         20  have been very responsible, in coming in and getting

         21  the final TCO converted into a, I mean, there is the

         22  temporary TCO converted into a final.  There are

         23  some that are outstanding, and we basically are

         24  telling those contractors, that if you do not come

         25  in and convert, we are not going to be issuing you
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          2  any additional TCO's in the future.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: One of the

          4  concerns that we have often heard from folks in the

          5  industry, is that there seems to be a lack of

          6  consistency throughout the Department that one

          7  person says "A", the next person says, "B", the next

          8  person says "C".  In one of the examples that the

          9  industry uses, with respect to Intro 450, is the

         10  definition of conforms substantially.  Joe says this

         11  conforms substantially, Mary says this conforms

         12  substantially and that criticism is throughout, not

         13  just on C of O's.  A, what is the definition of

         14  conforms substantially, and is that a valid

         15  criticism that goes back to the days when the former

         16  administration, when now is the bull pen over there,

         17  used to be the public hearing room, and they had a

         18  two day hearing, and I would pop in throughout the

         19  day and that is what people would say, back then,

         20  and they are saying it today, Joe says this, Mary

         21  says this, Queens says that, Staten Island office

         22  says this.  What is the definition of conforms

         23  substantially, and is that criticism still valid

         24  today?

         25                 MR. KRAMER: Well, I actually do not

                                                            42

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  think the criticism is valid today, I mean, although

          3  in an apartment of 950 people, I am not going to

          4  tell you that you could not ask two architects and

          5  two engineers a question, and come up with different

          6  opinions, because certainly that can happen.

          7  However, one of the things that we have done, and I

          8  may have eluded to this before, is on a bi- weekly

          9  basis, the Borough Commissioners get together with

         10  the Deputy Commissioner of Operations, Bob Lemandry

         11  (phonetic) and the council, and hash out the major

         12  issues that are being presented.  So, for example,

         13  if in Queens, there is an issue regarding the

         14  interpretation of plumbing, we will work that out

         15  and attempt to have standardized procedure, and that

         16  is one of the things that we want to use, and do

         17  use, the PPM, or similar process for it, to become

         18  much more internally consistent.  I think that those

         19  bi- weekly meetings, I think one is held by

         20  telephone and the other is held in person, and they

         21  are virtually all morning, they take up a full

         22  morning, meaning the ones at 280, have been very

         23  useful in standardizing procedures.  And there are

         24  some different conditions in Brooklyn and Queens,

         25  from Staten Island, let us say, or Manhattan.
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          2  Issuing TCO's, for example in Manhattan on major

          3  office buildings, is a very different issue, than

          4  issuing a TSO on a single family home.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: One last

          6  question, Madam Chair. In your testimony on page

          7  seven, in opposition to Intros 450 and 451, you made

          8  the comment that we know of no enforcement mechanism

          9  other than withholding of the final C of O that can

         10  ensure that these final elements can be completed.

         11  Is that to say that the Department has just given up

         12  on the notion and rejected the idea of amounts

         13  again, or pursuing the notion that we put out in the

         14  beginning of the Growth Management Task Force about

         15  the performance bond that is used in other counties?

         16                 MR. KRAMER: Actually, I think that we

         17  are certainly open to increasing the escrow amount.

         18  It is important to remember that the amount in

         19  escrow, however, is something that is  a matter of

         20  private contract, between the buyer and the seller.

         21  And, although it provides an economic incentive for

         22  the builder to complete the building, it does not

         23  give the Department a handle over the builder.  So I

         24  do think that if the buyer's industry, whether it be

         25  the lawyers or the bankers or what have you, we are
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          2  more aggressive within this area and increased

          3  escrows, because this is indeed something that can

          4  be done by private contract, there is no reason for

          5  the Department of Buildings to have to impose that,

          6  we would see a lot less of this problem.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: And a

          8  performance bond?

          9                 MR. KRAMER: I actually think a

         10  performance bond and a warranties are areas that are

         11  definitely worth pursuing, again, they are matters

         12  of private contract, they take the Buildings

         13  Department out of that aspect of enforcement, but I

         14  think that, frankly, if I were a buyer of a home, of

         15  a new home, I would be willing to pay the additional

         16  price for a warranty, particularly, you know, I

         17  think that some of the larger builders can get

         18  warranties at a reasonable cost.  I think the

         19  smaller builders may have problems with that, and

         20  certain buyers may not want to spend the additional

         21  thousand dollars, or whatever it cost to get that,

         22  to get the warranty.  But I definitely think it is

         23  something worth pursuing.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Okay.  Thank

         25  you.  Thank you Madam Chair.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Council

          3  Member Brewer.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you.  I

          5  just want to understand again the process.  So if I

          6  am at the Department of Buildings and I want to find

          7  out if I received an email regarding my response,

          8  are there computers there that I can do a mail to

          9  web or something so that I can find out what is

         10  going on?  In other words, how does the on going

         11  communication take place in this electronic age?  Do

         12  I have to call back to my office?

         13                 MR. KRAMER: Well, I mean, if you --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Are you

         15  wireless on site?

         16

         17                 MR. KRAMER: Actually, I do not think

         18  we are wireless on site.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I do not think

         20  you are either.

         21                 MR. KRAMER: Sounds like it would be a

         22  wonderful thing to pursue, but --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: It would make

         24  it easier for the folks --

         25                 MR. KRAMER: We do have terminals at
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          2  our borough offices which are open to the public,

          3  where you can see --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Your own

          5  email?

          6                 MR. KRAMER: No, you can only see --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Well, that is

          8  what I am saying.  That is what you need.

          9                 MR. KRAMER: It certainly is an

         10  interesting --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: In other

         12  words, I am trying to get the cost down for the

         13  person using your system, and for the homeowner at

         14  the other end.  So the idea would be that either you

         15  make your offices wireless, not hard to do --

         16                 MR. KRAMER: But the, Mr. Ranchty just

         17  reminded me that any of the clerks in the office

         18  would have the --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Oh, I know

         20  that.

         21                 MR. KRAMER: -- Ability, would

         22  certainly, would have the ability to --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: But they are

         24  not going to check my home email.

         25                 MR. KRAMER: They will not check that.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: They are not

          3  going to do that.

          4                 MR. KRAMER: I think a wireless system

          5  would be a wonderful thing and I believe that there

          6  is a program which the City is developing for

          7  wireless service, in all of southern Manhattan,

          8  although that would not have an impact on the other

          9  boroughs.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: It is not

         11  there, yet.

         12                 MR. KRAMER: Right, I guess --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Gino has not

         14  quite made it happen.

         15                 MR. KRAMER: You have to go to

         16  Starbuck's to get your wireless.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Like I said,

         18  these are things that would make it easier on the

         19  customer whom you are trying to serve.

         20                 And the other question I have is if

         21  you are trying to just call the Department of

         22  Buildings, you call 311, that is one way to do it,

         23  but then do you, as part of your process

         24  information, have the direct line of the plan

         25  examiner?  How does that ongoing discussion take

                                                            48

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  place?  Because if you call the operator now to get

          3  the Buildings Department, you are told 311.

          4                 MR. KRAMER: I do not believe that we

          5  provide for business hour service direct to the plan

          6  examiners.  I think that you make appointments with

          7  them.  But we do use email extensively, but most of

          8  the plan examiners spend their time reviewing plans

          9  or meeting with applicants.  So that is the

         10  traditional way of doing this.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I am just

         12  saying that there are some kinks in the system, just

         13  in terms of your moving one way in technology, that

         14  make sense, but in order to do it, you also have to

         15  think about the customer, and what his or her needs

         16  are, now that you are so technologically

         17  sophisticated.  They cannot keep up with it, if they

         18  do not have the tools on site.  Point that out.

         19                 MR. KRAMER: Right.  We have had some

         20  computer terminals and we would like to have more.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: But they have

         22  to be able to be used, not just for looking at the

         23  plans, which is one possibility, when they are

         24  computerized or digitized, but more, what is the

         25  story with access for the population that is trying
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          2  to use your services.

          3                 MR. KRAMER: Right.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay.  Thank

          5  you very much.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

          7  Thank you, Steve and Donald.

          8                 MR. KRAMER: You are welcome.  Thanks

          9  for the opportunity to testify.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Jessica

         11  Fortino, Michael Fazio and Bernard Carr, you can,

         12  kind of move those chairs together a little better.

         13  Whoever wants to start first, just begin.

         14                 MR. Fazio: Good morning, my name is

         15  Michael Fazio. I am the President of the Building

         16  Industry Association of New York City.  We are a

         17  group which represent builders of residential

         18  properties in Brooklyn and Staten Island.

         19                 I would like to thank Chairwoman

         20  Provenzano and the members of her committee, for

         21  holding this hearing today.  I would also like to

         22  thank Council Member Weprin of Queens, for his

         23  sponsorship, prime sponsorship, on these important

         24  pieces of legislation, and the 25 other council

         25  members throughout the City, who have indicated to
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          2  our organization, that they would be willing to join

          3  with Mr. Weprin in co- sponsoring these bills.

          4                 In the interest of time, let me just

          5  say a few words why we think each of them is

          6  important to both the housing industry, and the

          7  public, at large.  As you all know, our City is a

          8  very expensive place to do business.  And when your

          9  business is building housing, especially work force

         10  and affordable housing, the amount of available

         11  land, on which you build is very scarce, and the

         12  cost can become prohibitive to both the builder, and

         13  to the consumer.  Apart from giving away land, and

         14  creating tax breaks for new homeowners, one of the

         15  most important ways our City's government can help

         16  curb the cost of housing, and its escalation, is to

         17  streamline the government agencies that builders and

         18  property owners must satisfy with their array of

         19  requirements, in order to build and occupy a home in

         20  this City.

         21                 Nowhere is this more needed than in

         22  the Department of Buildings.  Let me say that the

         23  current administration, seems genuinely committed to

         24  trying to accomplish the reforms needed to reduce

         25  some of the expenses of housing construction.  We
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          2  have, our organization, worked with them on many

          3  issues, and have made some important progress.

          4  However, administrations, as you know come and go,

          5  priorities change and there still exists a great

          6  deal of improvement needed from an agency that was

          7  once one of the most backward in the entire country.

          8

          9                 We ask that you codify some of these

         10  important reforms to assist our industry, and

         11  equally as important, to protect the home buying

         12  public.

         13                 Let me take the maddening experience

         14  of a fully completed home, sitting unoccupied for

         15  weeks at a time.  Let us say someone is building a

         16  one family home for $350,000 dollars, a fairly

         17  modest sum in today's real estate market.  While

         18  waiting for inspections and sign offs from the

         19  Department of Buildings, for plumbing, highway,

         20  construction, electrical or a final certificate of

         21  occupancy, the builder must carry the cost of

         22  financing the land, the labor, and material costs

         23  for the home, taxes, insurance on the property,

         24  security cost to protect from vandalism, and other

         25  incidental expenses.  We can estimate these costs at
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          2  approximately $5,000 dollars a house, per month.

          3  That means that the bureaucratic delays that this

          4  agency can cost, is nearly $200 dollars a day.  When

          5  the delays reach two months, which is a fairly

          6  common experience, it can add over $10,000 dollars

          7  to the cost of a home.  Ultimately, the consumer

          8  bears this cost since it happens to the entire

          9  industry city- wide, and gets reflected in the

         10  market, in this City.  The sad part of the story

         11  involves how the $10,000 dollar bureaucracy tax, the

         12  wasted money, the consumer ends up paying in the

         13  higher cost, often with interest over 30 years,

         14  creates absolutely no revenue that can be used by

         15  the City for anything worthwhile.

         16                 To quickly go through the legislation

         17  that we support, let me say that there is no

         18  softening of regulations or regulatory relief

         19  sought, in any of them.  We believe these bills

         20  deserve your support, because they offer clarity of

         21  definitions, operational efficiencies, education for

         22  the public, and agency accountability to the public,

         23  and to the City Council.

         24                 Intros 445, 446 and 451, these bills

         25  create a defined review and appeal process with
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          2  reasonable time tables.  Our industry will support

          3  any specific codified process that contains time

          4  constraints.  However, the process currently in

          5  place, is not always uniform, and not always timely.

          6                 Intro 448, this bill only requires

          7  that the agency report to the council on its income

          8  and revenue difference.  The Department is estimated

          9  to collect more than $20 million dollars this year

         10  in non tax levy user fees.  We want the council to

         11  have the information, so that when the agency says

         12  it does not have enough inspectors to respond to

         13  your constituents, or enough clerks to process paper

         14  work in a reasonable period of time, you can

         15  properly ask them, why they are not using the money

         16  that they collect for that purpose?  The Department

         17  must spend more money on the Department fees, I mean

         18  the Department must spend more money on the

         19  Department.  The fees, be related to the

         20  applications in accordance with court decisions that

         21  have been rendered in the past.

         22                 Intro 447, this would require that

         23  DOB, the Department of Buildings, be explicitly

         24  subject to the CAPA Act, like every agency is

         25  supposed to, under the City Charter.  This would
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          2  give both communities, and the industry an

          3  opportunity to comment and make suggestions before

          4  proposed rules and regulations go into effect, and

          5  to help reduce unnecessary costs, from poorly

          6  thought out proposals.  Far too many PPN's are

          7  lengthy, and picking a few of the minor examples as

          8  we heard when Mr Kramer spoke, does not address the

          9  bulk of PPN's.  A few industry responses does not

         10  equal public comment, with formal process.

         11                 Also, I would also like to add that

         12  the Borough Commissioner meetings that are held

         13  every month, our industry has never seen anything

         14  put in writing, as far as decisions that come from

         15  these meetings.  Also, we have never been given a

         16  copy of a PPN to see for review.

         17                 Intro 449, this would require that

         18  the Department with the council in developing a

         19  consumer education piece, to avoid the confusion

         20  from citizens who are not aware of their rights and

         21  responsibilities, after they close on a new home.

         22  Website material is not public education.  Website

         23  is good for builders and professionals, but the

         24  average homeowner will not understand it so easily.

         25                 Intro number 450, this would define
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          2  substantial compliance for certificate of occupancy,

          3  so that this City truly has one standard, and not

          4  the current madness of guesswork, that currently

          5  faces a builder who has to satisfy different rules

          6  in Bay Ridge, than Bedford- Stuyvesant, or from

          7  Queens to Brooklyn.  Each borough, often each

          8  examiner and inspector, can have a different view

          9  and standard, on the same issue.  This lengthens

         10  time and costs to construct a new home.  The goal

         11  should be safe, affordable homes.

         12                 I would like to thank the committee

         13  again on the opportunity to be heard on these

         14  subjects, and we urge your support to get these

         15  costs under control, and help both the public and

         16  the industry.

         17                 CHAPERON PROVENZANO: Thank you,

         18  Jessica?

         19                 MS. FORTINO: Thank you Chairwoman

         20  Provenzano for holding this hearing that goes to the

         21  very heart of the operations of the Department of

         22  Buildings, and the City's ability to foster private

         23  efforts to provide safe and affordable housing for

         24  New Yorkers.

         25                 My name is Jessica Fortino and I
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          2  serve as Executive Vice President of the Building

          3  Industry Association of New York City.  Our

          4  association represents home builders in Staten

          5  Island and Brooklyn.  Almost all of our members

          6  reside here, and deeply care about our City.  It is

          7  our desire to make the City work, that led us to

          8  identify problem areas, that the legislation the

          9  committee considers today, would address.  I am

         10  speaking obviously of Intros numbers 445 through

         11  451.  The Building Industry Association urges the

         12  committee to approve these sound measures aimed at

         13  helping to curb the escalating cost of new home

         14  construction in the City of New York, address the

         15  potential for corrupting the agency and give the

         16  agency the tools necessary to improve the way it

         17  does business.

         18                 Thank you to Councilman David Weprin,

         19  who has sponsored all of the bills that we speak of

         20  today, and his numerous colleagues who also sponsor

         21  this legislation.  The legislation responds to a

         22  recurring need, improving the DOB operations and

         23  administration.  If an act of these bills will also

         24  reduce delays, and the unnecessary added costs,

         25  building and property owners currently face.  More
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          2  importantly, these proposed local laws, helped

          3  remove opportunities for corruption.  Further, these

          4  bills will increase the DOB's ability to concentrate

          5  on its stated core public safety mission, which is

          6  the safe and lawful use of buildings.

          7                 Firstly, the Revenues and

          8  Expenditures Bill, Intro 448, would address the

          9  discrepancy in the revenues and expenditures of the

         10  Department of Buildings for plan examinations and

         11  applications for certificate of occupancy.  The DOB

         12  receives approximately $20 million dollars more in

         13  revenue, than its entire budget.  The current year's

         14  budget projects a $22 million dollar surplus and a

         15  $21 million dollar surplus in Fiscal Year 2006, that

         16  begins July 1.  The revenue includes user fees,

         17  meant to cover user's costs of services at the

         18  Department.  Since any excess revenues go to the

         19  City's general fund, it means the City effectively

         20  imposes an improper tax to the extent that service

         21  costs remain substantially less than collected fees.

         22    This legislation requires the Buildings

         23  Commissioner to provide an accounting of the

         24  revenue, the Department collects and its

         25  expenditures, every six months.  Where expenditures
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          2  fall to less than 90 percent of agency revenues, the

          3  Commissioner must either reduce fees or raise

          4  expenditures.

          5                 The CAPA Bill, Intro 447, would

          6  address the Promulgation of Department of Buildings

          7  Legal, Administrative, Operational and Technical

          8  Policy and Procedure Notices, outside the review

          9  process, set forth in the City Charter, when

         10  agencies make rules and regulations.  These notices

         11  often fit the definition of regulations, but the

         12  Department fails to promulgate them in accordance

         13  with the City Administrative Procedure Act, under

         14  Chapter 45 of the Charter.  Subjecting PPN's to

         15  CAPA, ensures the public can comment on

         16  inappropriate regulations, before they would take

         17  effect.

         18                 The Public Education Bill, Intro 449,

         19  would establish a program to educate homeowners, and

         20  the public at large, on building and zoning issues,

         21  governing home renovation and construction.  This

         22  legislation requires the Department of Buildings to

         23  compile a list of the most common violations by

         24  homeowners, and educate the public about them, and

         25  how to avoid them.  Also, it requires the Department
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          2  to work with council members and the Borough

          3  Presidents, to alert homeowners so they do not run

          4  afoul of relevant changes and building codes and

          5  zoning.

          6                 The next set of bills would address

          7  the inconsistencies and how the Department of

          8  Building operates.

          9                 The Plan Examination Bill, Intro 445,

         10  would establish a process to review decisions

         11  denying approval of applications and plans submitted

         12  to the Department of Buildings. This legislation

         13  would require completed reviews and decisions and

         14  appeals of negative decision by the agency's borough

         15  chief engineers and Borough Commissioner within five

         16  business days, the Borough Commissioner's panel,

         17  within 40 business days, and the Commissioner or

         18  Commissioner's designee, within 20 business days.

         19  The current process lacks specific time limits.

         20                 The Certificate of Occupancy Appeals

         21  Bill, Intro 446, would establish a process to

         22  consider appeals of rejections of an application for

         23  a certificate of occupancy.  This legislation would

         24  require complete reviews and decisions on appeals of

         25  a Department of Buildings rejection of a certificate
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          2  of occupancy, within the same time frames as Intro

          3  445.

          4                      The Certificate of Occupancy

          5  Inspection Timing Bill, Intro 451, would establish a

          6  process to examine applications filed for approval

          7  of certificates of occupancy.  The Department of

          8  Buildings fails to abide by the legal requirement

          9  that all applications for certificate of occupancy

         10  should be examined promptly.  Departmental personnel

         11  will reject an application with a ministerial error

         12  in the paperwork, while failing to notify the

         13  applicant, until the applicant inquires to an

         14  application status. This legislation requires the

         15  DOB to conduct examinations for certificate of

         16  occupancy within ten calendar days of submission of

         17  an application, and prohibits ministerial errors as

         18  grounds for refusal to inspect, although they can

         19  remain a ground for rejection.

         20                 The current open- ended process, each

         21  of these three bills would address, essentially

         22  allows, if not outright encourages,  free lancing by

         23  inspectors.  It leads to opportunities for abuse in

         24  the system.

         25                 The Substantial Compliance Bill,
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          2  Intro 450, would define substantial compliance for

          3  obtaining a certificate of occupancy.  To issue a

          4  certificate of occupancy, the Department of

          5  Buildings must determine that, "such buildings

          6  conforms substantially to the approved plans and the

          7  provisions of the building code and other applicable

          8  laws and regulations".  The Administrative Code

          9  provides no definition of conforms substantially.

         10  This results in many different interpretations of

         11  what conforms substantially means.  To limit

         12  variations in interpretations, this legislation

         13  defines conforms substantially as, completed to such

         14  a point that the premises is habitable and safe for

         15  occupancy.  This current lack of specificity, and

         16  differing interpretations, raises concerns that not

         17  everyone is on the same playing field.  There is no

         18  reason why any new homes should have different

         19  requirements to obtain a CO in different boroughs,

         20  or even by two different examiners in the same

         21  borough.

         22                 The delays in plan approvals, that

         23  result in each of the four above cases, often hold

         24  up new construction, and the jobs it would create.

         25                 Even more importantly, it leaves the
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          2  public less protected.  As a matter of public

          3  safety, these reforms must be enacted.  Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

          5  Bern?

          6                 MR. CARR: Good morning Madam Chair,

          7  and members of the committee.  My name is Bernard

          8  Carr and I am Executive Director of the New York

          9  State Association for Affordable Housing.  NYSAFAH

         10  is a statewide organization of developers and others

         11  involved in the financing and building of affordable

         12  housing.  The bulk of our 250 members work

         13  throughout New York City, its five boroughs, and are

         14  collectively responsible for most of the housing

         15  built with the City, State or Federal subsidies in

         16  New York City in recent years.

         17                 I am here today to testify in favor

         18  of the Intros. Despite Commissioner Lancaster's

         19  leadership, many exceptional employees, and an

         20  unprecedented number of recent innovations in its

         21  processes, the Department of Buildings remains a

         22  difficult place. In order to secure approved plans

         23  and ultimately a certificate of occupancy, the

         24  developer often faces, unaccountable delays, and

         25  arbitrary decisions, that can differ from borough to
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          2  borough, and even from one inspector or plan

          3  examiner, to another.  These delays make no

          4  contribution to building safety, but cost the

          5  developer time and money.  This is especially a

          6  problem for affordable housing developers, whose

          7  properties are typically subject to restrictions on

          8  income, and renter sales prices.  Developers are not

          9  able to simply pass costs along to the tenant or

         10  homeowner, since if rents or sales prices rise above

         11  certain levels, the projects are no longer eligible

         12  to receive the subsidies that make them affordable

         13  in the first place.

         14                 The five bills, the bills, under

         15  discussion today will make the DOB application

         16  process more uniform among the five boroughs, and

         17  extremely important for the developer, more

         18  predictable.  Intros 445, 446 and 451, will expedite

         19  the approval of plans and certificates of occupancy.

         20    Intro 447, would ensure that those most affected

         21  by changes in DOB policies and procedures, have the

         22  opportunity to comment on those changes, before they

         23  occur.  Intro 448 will help DOB address the budget

         24  issues that are a major challenge for the agency.

         25  It will also open the door for creative solutions,

                                                            64

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  like charging extra fees for expedited inspections.

          3                 Finally, we support Intro 450, but

          4  with one qualification.  Currently, an inspector can

          5  deny a certificate of occupancy for a trivial

          6  deviation from the approved plans, such as a door

          7  that swings open from the left, rather than to the

          8  right. This adds to project costs, delays the tenant

          9  or homeowner from moving in, and forces the agency

         10  to reinspect the property. Defining substantial

         11  conformance as completed to the point that the

         12  premises is habitable and safe for occupancy, will

         13  help prevent these situations.  However,

         14  predictability still requires, that clear and

         15  specific standards be developed to define safe and

         16  habitable.

         17                 By bringing the predictability and

         18  transparency to the byzantine world of the

         19  Department of Buildings, these bills will make DOB

         20  more efficient and user friendly, and bring down

         21  development costs, without compromising safety or

         22  the integrity of the process.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         24                 Council Member Brewer?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you, I
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          2  was interested, I am interested in this advisory

          3  board and I know you have indicated that you have

          4  never seen minutes, have you been asked to be on the

          5  advisory board, does everybody know when they are

          6  taking place, et cetera?

          7                 MR. CARR: No, when I was talking

          8  about the advisory board, I do not believe there is

          9  an advisory board in each borough. I believe there

         10  is one in Manhattan that meets for the whole City.

         11  That is what I was referring to.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Right. So we

         13  are going to try to get to the bottom of that.  I

         14  know that the Chairwoman asked the same question.

         15                 MR. CARR: I would say that we may

         16  have individual members who belong, but this the

         17  first that, certainly, our organization has heard

         18  about it.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: So it would

         20  make sense to have one in each borough, and it would

         21  make sense to have builders from that borough

         22  participate.  Okay.

         23                 And the other question I have is,

         24  what is the, I think the plan examiner, how does one

         25  get selected to go to a plan examiner?  We heard
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          2  from the Department of Buildings, that is was

          3  random, and the Department of Buildings is deciding.

          4    Is that really the case?  Because I know,

          5  understandably, people do shop for different folks.

          6                 MR. CARR: That is the case.  That is

          7  the case.  That is true.  But what my testimony was

          8  focusing on, was the fact that in the same borough,

          9  in the same Department, you can have an examiner

         10  sitting here, and an examiner sitting where Council

         11  Member Oddo is, and looking at the same exact plan

         12  and the same exact issue and have totally different

         13  objections and not have conformance, and not have

         14  specificity in the code and in the zoning.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER; That is a huge

         16  issue, and Council Member Oddo was very clear when

         17  he made that as his point.

         18                 The other question I have is, are

         19  there other kinds of communication mechanisms,

         20  either on site or off site?  Are people clear as to

         21  what the process is?  We heard from the Department

         22  of Buildings that it is all laid out on the web, in

         23  terms of dial 311, you get, you know, blah, blah,

         24  blah.  Is that something that is clear?

         25                 MR. CARR: Well, it is clear to the
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          2  professionals that practice at the Department.  It

          3  is clear to the expediters that are there on a day

          4  in and day out basis.  But I do not think it is

          5  clear to the people in the filed, or the lay person

          6  who does not understand the gyrations and the

          7  mechanisms of the Department. I can refer to an

          8  incident about month or two ago, when we had an

          9  issue, the responsive department was, well, they

         10  know, they are here every day.  And I said, well,

         11  you know, I am not here every day, and my colleague

         12  is not here every day.   We need to get this message

         13  out, we need education and we need to know.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay. Thank

         15  you, that is definitely my opinion.

         16                 Thank you very much, Madam Chair.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: We have been

         18  joined by Council Member Letitia James.  Council

         19  Member Oddo, do you have questions?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Yes, just one,

         21  two quick ones. Mr. Fazio, you said, correct me if I

         22  am wrong, you said that you build mostly in Staten

         23  Island and Brooklyn?

         24                 MR. FAZIO: Correct.  And our

         25  membership builds in Staten Island and in Brooklyn.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: And correct me

          3  if I am wrong, but I thought I heard you say that

          4  you used the phrase, affordable housing.

          5                 MR. FAZIO: Well, I used the phrase

          6  working class housing, and I piggy- backed it with

          7  affordable housing.  But I, for the most part we

          8  build work force, middle income housing.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Could you

         10  define, for me, affordable housing and working

         11  class, or work --

         12                 MR. FAZIO: Affordable, I probably

         13  would not be able to define for you.  I can define

         14  working class housing and as, you know, in the past

         15  couple of years, it has been dwindling and

         16  dwindling.  The costs are astronomical and we are

         17  talking about a $350,000 dollar home as if it is

         18  nothing, and that probably is working class housing

         19  today.  And I do not know that you can find a house

         20  in New York City, the outer boroughs, a new house,

         21  for that kind of price, but they still do exist.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: So, that would

         23  be the number, 350 --

         24                 MR. FAZIO: I think $350,000 dollars

         25  would be a fair estimate, taken in the four outer
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          2  boroughs.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Okay.  Thank

          4  you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: No other

          6  questions?  Thank you.

          7                 R. Randy Lee, Corey Bearak and Robert

          8  Altman, whoever wants to start.

          9                 MR. ALTMAN: Good morning, my name is

         10  Robert Altman, I am representing Joseph Ciampa, the

         11  President of the Queens and Bronx Building

         12  Association.  He apologizes for not being able to

         13  make it this morning, however the organization

         14  shovels its own snow, it seems, and that is what he

         15  was in charge of last night, so he might be in bed

         16  this morning.

         17                 I would like to thank --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: He should

         19  have gotten up earlier.

         20                 MR. ALTMAN: I would like to thank the

         21  council for the opportunity to testify today on

         22  Intro numbers 445 through 451. The Queens and Bronx

         23  Building Association endorses this legislation and

         24  urges the council to pass these bills.

         25                 First, let me say that we have worked
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          2  with the Department of Buildings for the past three

          3  years, and will continue to work with the Department

          4  of Buildings, in improving the Buildings Department.

          5    More than other agencies, the Department of

          6  Buildings requires experienced professionals,

          7  conversant with the difficult code, and the needs of

          8  the City.  Unfortunately, over the past decade, the

          9  Department has been hit with the twin evils of

         10  budget cuts, and the loss of experienced personnel.

         11  While the City has faced tough budget times, real

         12  estate has continued to remain strong, resulting in

         13  more pressures upon the Department.  Yet the lack of

         14  personnel in the mid and upper management ranks, and

         15  the lack of money, has created major difficulties

         16  that will take more years to correct.  We applaud

         17  the efforts of the current Department's leadership

         18  in these areas.

         19                 Second, we do not see the legislation

         20  as symptomatic of the current problems of the

         21  Department.  The problems the legislation seeks to

         22  address, have been around for almost 40 years. We

         23  credit this administration with seeking to begin the

         24  long slow process of addressing these issues.

         25  However, our association believes the legislation
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          2  addresses areas that will need to be addressed,

          3  beyond the current administration.  And at the

          4  reporting requirements within the legislation, will

          5  allow our industry to evaluate the performance of

          6  future administrations.  Considering that past

          7  administrations have not necessarily paid attention

          8  to important departmental issues, creating a base

          9  line for evaluation, would prove immeasurably

         10  helpful for our industry and future departmental

         11  personnel.  Simply put, it will help make the

         12  Department more accountable to date, and into the

         13  future.

         14                 That much said, we see much to

         15  support in the current introductions.  Two bills

         16  address the important surrounding timely completion

         17  of the certificate of occupancy process.  This has

         18  been a thorn in the side of numerous builders and

         19  citizens alike.  It is not just the builder who

         20  suffers from drawn out certificate of occupancy

         21  process.  Homeowners, home buyers and the business

         22  community, all suffer from a process that simply

         23  takes too long.  The legislation does not lesson the

         24  criteria for a certificate of occupancy, it simply

         25  seeks the focus the Department, and ensure timely
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          2  answers.  If the Department answers no, and tells

          3  you why, then you can correct the situation, or

          4  appeal.  But the failure to receive any answer, just

          5  creates delays.  And delays cost everyone money.

          6                 Now, I am going to deviate from my

          7  testimony for a second, because a delay of a month,

          8  when a builder is carrying a house, the debt

          9  service, let us say it is a $350,000 dollar house,

         10  between the debt service, between the taxes, between

         11  the insurance, between the security, every month of

         12  delay, you are looking at between 4 and $5,000

         13  dollars being added to the cost of that home. And I

         14  will tell you, there have been time periods where we

         15  have seen six month delays, seven month delays,

         16  eight month delays, so it is something which does

         17  ultimately cost the home buyer, and not an

         18  unsubstantial amount.  We support a third bill on

         19  plan examinations for much the same reason.

         20                 Moreover, we acknowledge that the

         21  Department needs more resources.  Other bills within

         22  this package, create standards, but the Department

         23  is under funded.  The fact that it is under funded

         24  is not excusable.  It takes in 20 million more than

         25  its expenses, mostly from user fees.  The department
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          2  has enough money to address industry and public

          3  concerns, but for some reason, its expense never

          4  matches its revenue.  Nor would it, under Intro

          5  number 448.  However this bill begins to address the

          6  inequity in the situation.

          7                 Another bill, Intro 447, seeks to

          8  make policy and procedure notices subject to CAPA.

          9  We support the general thrust of the legislation.

         10  Mostly we would like the opportunity to comment on

         11  the policy and procedure notices before they are

         12  finalized.  PPN's create procedures we must follow,

         13  and with an experienced Department, fewer errors

         14  would be made.  The current department faces

         15  problems, because it does not have the benefit of

         16  institutional memory.  Therefore we would like the

         17  opportunity to provide comments, since we have a

         18  significant amount of memory, and can explain how

         19  the PPN may have negative repercussions that the

         20  Department may not appreciate.

         21                 And just a note on Queens, you are

         22  looking at a number of generational builders.  You

         23  are looking at 3rd and 4th generations within the

         24  same family who are building, so there is a lot of

         25  experience there.
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          2                 We obviously understand the

          3  Department would have the final say over the PPN,

          4  for the same reason we also support a discussion of

          5  the nature of substantial compliance, and the

          6  certificate of occupancy.

          7                 And obviously, we also support more

          8  education for the public.  The more the public

          9  understands the Buildings Department, the benefits

         10  are greater for our industry, and the City as a

         11  whole.

         12                 We applaud the efforts of the council

         13  to be the first to consider a legislative initiative

         14  to assist the Buildings Department.  We remain ready

         15  to work with the Department and the council to

         16  improve the development process in the City of New

         17  York. Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         19                 MR. LEE: Okay.  That sounds better.

         20  Good morning, Madam Chairwoman and members.  I

         21  appreciate the opportunity to testify.

         22  Unfortunately I think that the Building Department

         23  has left, so they will not have the benefit of what

         24  I have to say, but, so be it.

         25                 My name is Randy Lee and I am a
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          2  lawyer and a home builder, and I have been a home

          3  builder for about 40 years.  I am the Chairman of

          4  the Building Industry Association of New York City

          5  and I speak somewhat with the voice of experience

          6  since I have built thousands of homes in every

          7  borough of New York City, starting in the Bronx and

          8  I am still there after all these years.

          9                 I was impressed by Mr. Kramer's

         10  performance, and I am going to save my comments for

         11  the end, but I would have to admit that it would be

         12  a lie to say that things are not better, since

         13  Commissioner Lancaster has been there.  However, it

         14  would be a much bigger lie, to say that they

         15  approach the level of excellence and performance

         16  that Mr. Kramer testified to.  And it is a shame

         17  because I believe that the Mayor is probably

         18  committed to excellence, as is the Commissioner, but

         19  the Department of Buildings has remained hamstrung

         20  for two basic reasons, budgetary and managerial.

         21  They have been in forced self denial for decades

         22  with antiquated equipment and resources.  I am old

         23  enough to remember John Lindsay having a press

         24  conference naming Chuck Merdler (phonetic) as his

         25  Commissioner, and saying that he is going to improve

                                                            76

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  and straighten everything out and implementing what

          3  they then called, one stop, which meant that

          4  everything stopped and never progressed further.

          5  And I have to say that the Building Department in

          6  the 70's, was better than it is now, it was better

          7  in the 80's, it was better in the 90's, than it is

          8  now.  They have suffered budget cuts, the building

          9  boom is accelerated.  There have been forced,

         10  encouraged buy outs by the administrations, leaving

         11  the Department of Buildings bereft of those expert

         12  professionals who had made careers there, and who

         13  contain the institutional memory that has been

         14  talked about in other testimony here.  But more

         15  important, is this idea of fees versus taxes.  In

         16  one of the Intros represents the idea, that under

         17  the law, fees are fees and taxes are taxes.  It is

         18  Hornbook Law, it is elementary.  The cases are cited

         19  in my testimony, that an agency that charges fees,

         20  has to spend every penny of that money providing the

         21  services that it collects those fees for.  And the

         22  Mayor's own budget report, and all of the material

         23  published by the City, not withstanding what Mr.

         24  Kramer said, shows that the Department of Building

         25  spends approximately $20 million dollars less on its
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          2  operations, than it takes in.  Now this is not about

          3  the Mayor's authority for budgeting, this is not

          4  about the City Council's budget authority or

          5  oversight, what this is about is simply the law.

          6  The Building Department has an antiquated computer

          7  system that they cannot update, they cannot hire

          8  high quality people and pay the salaries they need

          9  to replace the people.  I mean, think about it.  You

         10  are all aware, what do the buy outs intend to do?

         11  They intended to take out people from the system who

         12  made $100.000 dollars a year so that they could

         13  either not be replaced at all, or replaced with

         14  people who make $30,000 dollars a year.

         15                 This needs to be addressed and our

         16  association attends to address this through the

         17  courts, if we cannot find some kind of comfort with

         18  either this legislation, we have tried to discuss it

         19  with the Mayor's staff, we have tried to discuss it

         20  with Mr. LaPadula and with his successors, and it

         21  fell on dead ears.  We were told that, that is just

         22  the way it is.  We collect the money, throw it in

         23  the pot, and spend it how we spend it.  Well, I

         24  think the Department of Buildings is at, their core

         25  mission is to protect the safety, the help, the
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          2  standards, that people live by, and I think that

          3  they are not able to do it now, because they do not

          4  have the money, they cannot do it.

          5                 Now Commissioner Lancaster is a good

          6  person, she has dedicated deputies, but they are

          7  hog- tied by the lack of funds. And no matter which

          8  way they turn, this bill is not about reducing fees.

          9    It is not about taking anybody's authority away.

         10  It is about the fact that they collect 20 million

         11  bucks that if they spend it where it was supposed to

         12  be, each and every one of you would not have the

         13  constituent problems and complaints that you have

         14  from the Building Department.  That is what it is

         15  about.

         16                 Now the other thing that is

         17  important, is this CAPA legislation.  Not

         18  withstanding what Mr. Kramer said that these are not

         19  little letters that go out about painting the walls,

         20  and whether you type in forms with capital letters

         21  or in lower case. More often than not, these

         22  actually interpret, or re- interpret, the way the

         23  Building Department views its obligations under the

         24  law, its activities, its procedures, and they

         25  interpret the building code and they interpret the
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          2  zoning resolution.  That is what they do.  And they

          3  do it in the dark.  There are no borough advisory

          4  committees that I know of.  What happens is, and I

          5  have active projects now in Queens, in Brooklyn, in

          6  the Bronx, in Manhattan and if I missed a borough, I

          7  apologize, and in Staten Island.  In Staten Island

          8  and in the other boroughs, informal groups of

          9  industry professionals meet on a regular or semi-

         10  regular basis with the borough commissioner, and we

         11  often meet with the Commissioner, or first Deputy

         12  Commissioner, Lemandry.  These are meetings where no

         13  notes are taken, nobody is appointed to these

         14  meetings, as Mr. Fazio testified, no written record

         15  of what solutions or what agreements are reached at

         16  these meetings, are published.  So to say that these

         17  represent some quantum leap forward, the good

         18  publicity, we love it, we think we accomplished

         19  something, but the idea that these things represent

         20  something that they are not, is not that way.  There

         21  is a Mayor's Building Industry Advisory Board, that

         22  has been around for 30 or 40 years, where the

         23  leaders of the industry are appointed, they meet

         24  once a month, they slap each others hand, have

         25  coffee, get a report from the Commission and her
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          2  turns about what is going on, and they slap their

          3  backs and leave.

          4                 The current administration, lacking

          5  institutional memory, and lacking many people with

          6  experience in these matters, has gone about a

          7  process of what we call sometimes, re- inventing the

          8  wheel.  And this issue about substantial completion

          9  to be defined by legislation, is one of those

         10  issues.  For time and memorial, the measure at the

         11  Department of Buildings, was that your obligation

         12  was to substantially complete the building.  Now

         13  that is the legal word of art, but that is what it

         14  is, and accordance with the code, the approved

         15  plans, and everything else.  What happened in this

         16  administration, as on this topic and many others,

         17  this Building Department has decided that, that is

         18  not the standard. They have decided that there can

         19  only be complete and absolute compliance, so what

         20  you have are stories of inspectors coming into a

         21  house where the paint is scratched, the door knob is

         22  missing, there might be a crack in a mirror in a

         23  medicine chest, and turning down the CO.  Absurd.

         24  When we asked the Building Department to create,

         25  they did something very interesting.  They created a
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          2  checklist that contains 77 items about what you have

          3  to do to get a C of O.  Think about this, 77 items.

          4  We said, that is fine.  We asked them why do you not

          5  make a list and just seminate it to the inspectors

          6  about what items do not constitute a CO objection?

          7  Like a handle missing, like a, whatever it is.  They

          8  would not do it.  They could not do it.  Under

          9  Commissioner Mieli's administration at the Building

         10  Department, and I am not, they did develop a list of

         11  things that could be changed in a house, for

         12  instance, a door swing right or left, if you had a

         13  sliding door on the plan and you changed it to a bi-

         14  fold door.  If you had a sliding window and changed

         15  it to a double hung window, if it were the same

         16  size.  These things were to be passed by the

         17  inspectors. That went out the window and nobody has

         18  heard from it.  That is the reason why we feel that

         19  it is important to have this legislation of

         20  Councilman Weprin supported.

         21                 Mr. Kramer testified that if this

         22  legislation were to pass, the sky would fall,

         23  because you would not have to get all these other,

         24  he intimated that you would not need all of these

         25  other approvals.  Obviously, that is not untrue.
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          2  The only thing that this legislation deals with, is

          3  the construction inspection issue.

          4                 Now, think about what the Building

          5  Department does

          6  today.  When I started out in the Bronx, 40 years

          7  ago, every aspect of every construction item on a

          8  house, was inspected.  An inspector physically came

          9  to the site, looked at the ground, the footing, the

         10  foundation, the framing, the insulation, the

         11  electricity, the plumbing, every single thing.

         12  Today, you know when you see the building inspector?

         13    When the house is completed.  That is the main,

         14  plumbing inspector does come, but they do not have

         15  to come, the plumber can sign it off.  The building

         16  inspector's usual first visit to the house, is when

         17  it is 100 percent complete.  So what can he see that

         18  is inside the walls?  How can they perform their

         19  core mission?  Now you would say, I am a builder,

         20  why would I want more inspections?  Because they

         21  have nothing to look for, so they have to make

         22  mischief.  And when people are allowed to free lance

         23  as the terms was used before, that is what it does.

         24  It opens the door for mischief, and you all know

         25  what that means.
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          2                 That is why, when the Building

          3  Department wants to stop it, add it, interpret it,

          4  or change it, or re- interpret what they have been

          5  doing for time and memorial, there needs to be

          6  notice in comment.  The only methodology for notice

          7  and comment in the City of New York, is following

          8  CAPA.  That is why we propose that these activities

          9  be subject to CAPA.

         10                 To listen to Mr. Kramer, there were

         11  no issues, no troubles, not broken, do not fix it.

         12  I point you to this book that was published two

         13  weeks ago, by the Furman Center.  Now this book is

         14  an update of the 1999 volume.  It is the seminal

         15  non- biased scholarly work on construction in New

         16  York City.  I took the liberty of Xeroxing the part

         17  on the Building Department, and handing it out to

         18  you.  And what do these people say?   What do the

         19  people that they have interviewed -- these are

         20  people from the industry, professionals, from the

         21  Building Department, elected officials, it is a

         22  whole long table of everybody they interviewed to do

         23  this. This is a scholarly work.  What do they say?

         24  Things ain't changed much since they did it in 1999.

         25  There are still five separate fiefdom in each of the
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          2  borough offices, except they forgot one thing, there

          3  is really six, because when you get to the Manhattan

          4  office, you get a different set of rules and

          5  regulations.

          6                 There is a culture of fear and

          7  inability of the Building Department to make

          8  decisions, because there are no clear cut rules or

          9  regulations that allow them to make decisions, that

         10  other people cannot question.  Now, this concept,

         11  that since everybody is looking over everybody's

         12  shoulder because of corruption, is making them

         13  unable to operate.  That is why setting forth the

         14  time limits that they have to act.  Making the test

         15  substantial completion.  That is why spending the

         16  money that the fees generate where it goes, so that

         17  they can hire good and qualified people, so that

         18  they can educate the people.  We foil the Building

         19  Department to ask them about education.  After three

         20  months, they admitted they had no education program

         21  for new hires. They sent us a list of videos and

         22  articles, some going back 25 years, that they

         23  maintain in their library, if anybody was

         24  interested.  I have to say, that since that time

         25  they have started a training program, but they need
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          2  to do more.

          3                 I think that I am about finished

          4  except I would like to address Councilman Oddo's

          5  question to Michael Fazio about the measure of

          6  affordability.  I would point out that at the heart

          7  of the Mayor's Housing Program for increasing the

          8  availability of housing in New York City, your

          9  programs, called The Cornerstone Program, the New

         10  Foundations Program, the New York City Housing

         11  Partnership Program and those programs which are

         12  aimed at housing the middle class in New York City,,

         13  are now at purchase price levels of 4 to $500,000

         14  dollars in some of them even $600,000 dollars.  And

         15  to the extent that anybody on the council does not

         16  have this volume, if it has not gotten it, I will be

         17  glad to make sure that they are all sent to every

         18  council member by the Furman Center.  And it is on

         19  the web, I am told.  Thank you very much.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         21  Corey?

         22                 MR. BEARAK: I guess it is good

         23  afternoon now.  My name is Corey Bearak and I am the

         24  Executive Vice President for the Queens Civic

         25  Congress, which represents 100 civic, co- op, condo,
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          2  homeowner and tenant organizations in the Borough of

          3  Queens, representing, I guess, about every

          4  demographic and every neighborhood in the borough.

          5  And I apologize that we did not have time to have

          6  public testimony prepared, but we will get something

          7  in writing to you.

          8                 Two of the pieces of legislation we

          9  have in our platform, and can clearly state our

         10  support for the others.  We just want to point out

         11  due speak to the fact that the Buildings Department

         12  does not work well, and needs to be fixed.  The

         13  legislation that is in our platform, that we do

         14  support, is the Revenue Bill, Intro 448 and the

         15  Education Bill, Intro 449.  The Revenue Bill has

         16  been an issue for us for several years, since we

         17  first found out there was a discrepancy in the

         18  revenue.  I happen to cross it when I was in a

         19  position in governments, some years ago, and a

         20  staffer was doing some work and it had the

         21  discrepancy laid out without any comment in it, you

         22  know, it just was the first time that it was flagged

         23  for me, and then later we found, we raised the issue

         24  with IBO and they did some, they actually did a

         25  report that I think is still available on the web,
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          2  and is embodied in a letter that I think is on the

          3  web that they wrote to then, GIA predecessor, Chair

          4  of the Committee, Archie Spigner, which highlighted

          5  the discrepancy, as well.  And I think it addressed

          6  the issue of fringe benefits, that the Buildings

          7  Department raised and still found there was that

          8  discrepancy.

          9                 The other point on the revenue side

         10  that I think that we need to make a point of, I am

         11  not sure that every single position, or every part

         12  of a position that the Buildings Department carries

         13  now, in every single OTPS item necessarily should be

         14  chargeable, in fact, to the fees.  So in theory,

         15  that can be a greater discrepancy.  And the fact

         16  that the Buildings Department had suggested that it

         17  is in only sort of a trend, going back to the six

         18  years, including the time in government when I was

         19  looking at the issue, there was always, sometimes

         20  the discrepancy was as high as $25 million dollars.

         21  And I think this year in the budget that was

         22  released, and you know, it is on the web that way,

         23  it is in excess of $21 million dollars.

         24                 In terms of the Education Bill, it

         25  has been a long standing concern of ours that people
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          2  who buy homes, just do not know what the zoning is,

          3  do not know what the building requirements are.  A

          4  lot of homes that are sold, and not necessarily when

          5  they are built, but when they are sold later, maybe

          6  the first owner or second owner selling it to new

          7  buyer, often are sold suggesting that there is an

          8  additional unit available, an additional apartment

          9  that you can get income for, and it is, in fact,

         10  illegal.  And this practice goes on a lot.  And

         11  though you can say, oh a closing or something like

         12  that, that something can be digressed or addressed

         13  in title report, the reality is, the homes do get

         14  sold, sometimes there may not be a title report,

         15  because some of these transactions occur with cash.

         16  And the bottom line is, that a lot of unsafe

         17  occupancies occur, and some homeowners put

         18  themselves in positions that they do not know are in

         19  fact an illegality, where they are putting

         20  themselves in an unsafe situation, because they may

         21  have a tenant in the housing, does not support, you

         22  know, frame housing, in particular, it does not

         23  support wiring that goes on today where everybody

         24  has numerous appliances.  And we have seen a number

         25  of examples in all the boroughs, where some homes

                                                            89

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  have gone up in flames, people have lost lives,

          3  because the premises are unsafe.

          4                 We will get back to you in terms of

          5  the other bills, when our Executive Committee has a

          6  chance to meet and talk about them.  Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

          8  Council Member Oddo?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you, Madam

         10  Chair.

         11                 Mr. Lee, you talked about the, with

         12  respect to the certificate of occupancy, how the

         13  pendulum swung to the point where it would take

         14  complete and absolute compliance before an inspector

         15  would sign off.  Would you recognize, though that,

         16  that pendulum swung all the way to that other

         17  extreme, because of the perhaps, political pressure,

         18  that was placed on the Department, because of so

         19  many horror stories of folks who made the biggest

         20  investment in their lives, had $3,000 dollars in

         21  escrow, $50,000, $60,000 $70,000 dollars worth of

         22  work still to be done with no way of getting the

         23  builder back?  Is it not -- would you concede the

         24  point that, and I will concede the point that

         25  perhaps the pendulum has swung too far to one
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          2  extreme, but it is a direct result from hearing so

          3  many instances, where the builders really left the

          4  new homeowners high and dry?

          5                 MR. LEE: I would directly attribute

          6  the fact that temporary certificates of occupancies

          7  are phased out in Staten Island to your efforts and

          8  those of Borough President Molinaro, and the

          9  industry, in fact, supports the phasing out of

         10  temporary certificates of occupancy.  I would also

         11  point out that you and the borough president asked,

         12  probably a year ago, the Building Department to

         13  substantially increase the CO escrows, and while Mr.

         14  Kramer testified correctly, that they are a private

         15  matter, certainly the Building Department, I guess

         16  he does not know about that, not having

         17  institutional memory, has required for the last ten

         18  years ago, that in order to get a temporary

         19  certificate of occupancy, you have to file a

         20  certificate confirming that the escrow is held, and

         21  the amount of the escrow, and the Building

         22  Department is, in fact, is the entity that set the

         23  escrow at $2500 dollars, and had to be dragged along

         24  to raise it to $6500 dollars recently, by Councilman

         25  Oddo, I am not in his cheering club, by the way, it
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          2  is just a fact. And that the industry, Mr. Fazio

          3  would have testified or would have responded, if

          4  asked it, has indicated that the industry would

          5  support an escrow of 10 or $15,000 dollars. And what

          6  that does is protect the public.   It is not

          7  intended to protect the Building Department, it is

          8  intended to protect the public, and everybody is for

          9  that.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Well, I

         11  appreciate the answer and I appreciate the kudos,

         12  but --

         13                 MR. LEE: You sound like my wife.

         14  There is always a but.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Yes.  Have there

         16  been instances that you have been aware of that were

         17  brought to your attention in the past, where in fact

         18  the new homeowners, had a difficulty in bringing the

         19  builder back to complete the work?

         20                 MR. LEE: Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Okay. It is

         22  interesting that you said the same thing in three

         23  different ways, and I am fascinated by, you

         24  mentioned the lack of institutional memory, you have

         25  said that the Department ran better in the 80's, and
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          2  I find that fascinating considering all the Koch re-

          3  treads that are in this administration, you would

          4  think there would be more institutional memory about

          5  it.  But you mentioned that you had conversations

          6  with Mr. LaPadula, who has since left, and you used

          7  the phrase, his successors.  Can you tell me who you

          8  meant by his successors who the industry has talked

          9  with?

         10                 MR. LEE: The industry has talked to

         11  them.  I will have to leave it to someone else.

         12  They have had the personal conversation and I will

         13  get back to you.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Okay,  If the

         15  industry can tell me who his successors were that

         16  would be great because, I have had a difficult time

         17  in finding that out.  Exactly.

         18                 MR. LEE: Now in terms of being a

         19  Staten Island representative, as he was, I do not

         20  think there is a successor.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Okay.

         22                 MR. LEE: Okay.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: With respect to

         24  448, which is the Revenue, I absolutely, and I think

         25  all of my colleagues when hearing your presentation

                                                            93

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  and knowing the work that we do in our districts,

          3  and the frustration, it is really interesting when

          4  two different sides of this equation, both feel the

          5  same sense of frustration with the middle player.

          6  And I absolutely agree with some of the things that

          7  you said in reference to that.  I just think that

          8  the method by which you are going about, via this

          9  legislation, which sort of does a bypass around the

         10  council, will never get council support, just on an

         11  institutional ground.  But I think the fundamental

         12  point you are making, is something that all of us

         13  would support, because it would make our lives a lot

         14  easier. It would make our constituents lives a lot

         15  better, and I think it would be better for the

         16  industry.  So my point is, either A, I guess you

         17  have to re- tool this bill, or B, this is got to

         18  stem from the executive.  I mean, I do not think

         19  that you can legislate the cures to some of the

         20  things that you are talking about.  Sure.

         21                 MR.FAZIO: If I can take that.  When

         22  the gentleman from the Buildings Department was

         23  testifying about that, he was saying the Commission

         24  asks the authority to change.  I mean that is a

         25  nuance, you know, bills get drafted, and you know, I
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          2  used to work like you did as a staffer, like Council

          3  Member Brewer is a staffer here, and it was involved

          4  in a lot of major bills that City Council passed,

          5  when I was here.  It seems to me, we were talking,

          6  where I was saying the Buildings Commissioner

          7  basically has to make the change at a staffing

          8  level.  You know, the reality is the Buildings

          9  commission really needs to be able to report that

         10  change, that, that discrepancy exists, and obviously

         11  it is up to the Mayor to be required to propose the

         12  modification to the council, which would then pass,

         13  and then be in violation of whoever did it.  I mean,

         14  but that is a nuance I think the intent of the bill,

         15  is to highlight the discrepancy and get the answer

         16  right.  And what we all really want is never having

         17  to deal with this issue, but there would be enough

         18  buildings personnel from both sides of the issue.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: I agree with

         20  that, and we could discuss what the process is.  The

         21  only problem I have with that, is that we, there is

         22  legislation in this body that essentially says, take

         23  all the revenue generated by the Park's Department

         24  and dedicate it to the Park's Department.  And there

         25  are lots of folks out there who are big advocates,
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          2  myself included, I have given x millions of dollars

          3  to the Park's Department, that is the only way you

          4  get anything built on Staten Island, with money.

          5  But I think the problem that we face, is that we are

          6  getting to the point where, what is the word,

          7  bulkanization (sic.) Of City agencies, where we are

          8  getting to the point where every City agency is

          9  going to say, every dollar my agency generates, I

         10  want to come back to my agency and I think at some

         11  point, I mean, it sounds good in a vacuum for the

         12  Park's Department, it sounds good in a vacuum for

         13  legislative lead for the buildings Department, but

         14  when does it end?  And I think, again, without

         15  passing the buck, I think it is better policy, that

         16  the administration do this and allocate the funds,

         17  than we legislate it.

         18                 MR. LEE: Well I think that the answer

         19  you gave, is the one that Mr. LaPadula gave.  But I

         20  think that the reality is, that the law is the law,

         21  and in my minutes, you will notice that we cite

         22  several cases and the fact is, that under the law in

         23  New York State and in most states, fees are not

         24  taxes, fees have to be, under the law, dedicated.

         25  There is no option.  There is no throw it in the
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          2  pot, and you have got an extra 20 million, give it

          3  to DHS.  It is not there.  They have to put the

          4  money now.  If they wanted to, and I am not

          5  suggesting this, if they wanted to reduce the fees

          6  and create a tax against building projects, they

          7  could take the money from the tax against building

          8  projects, and spend it any place they wanted.  But a

          9  fee is a fee.  That is the law.  And I said it

         10  before, and if I was not clear --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: No, you were.

         12                 MR. LEE: -- We are going to sue the

         13  City.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Well, that is my

         15  next question.

         16                 MR. LEE: And we are going to win and

         17  we are going to lose.  But I think we are going to

         18  win.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: I am not dopey

         20  enough to argue case laws here, Mr. Lee, so I will

         21  stipulate that, that in fact is the law.  And my

         22  next question was in which county or in which court

         23  will you bring your lawsuit?

         24                 MR. LEE: New York County.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Any particular
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          2  reason?

          3                 MR. LEE: Huh?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Any particular

          5  reason?

          6                 MR. LEE: I do not know.  We will have

          7  to see. Because that is where the Commissioner and

          8  the Mayor are located.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Okay.  Alright,

         10  thank you, Madam Chair.

         11                 MR. LEE: Thank you, sir.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: We are

         13  worried about lack of institutional memory in the

         14  administration, you had better start worrying about

         15  lack of institutional memory in the City Council.

         16                 MR. LEE: Amen.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Council

         18  Member Brewer?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you very

         20  much.  I feel institutionally long term, however,

         21  Madeline.  Right Corey?

         22                 My question, first of all thank you

         23  for your testimony because it is all very

         24  enlightening.  It is very real, it is helpful in

         25  thinking about these bills.  And I just wanted to
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          2  second what Council Member Oddo said.  It is

          3  interesting to me that you are bringing up this fee

          4  issue, because although it is more in terms of the

          5  types, you know, the restaurants and the different

          6  kinds of parks' facilities, I am trying to think of

          7  a way that, the Central Park facilities would in

          8  fact benefit parks, for instance, in Staten Island,

          9  because that is where much of the revenue is coming

         10  in.  These are on going discussions and it helps to

         11  have it brought up in this context, so that when the

         12  budget hearings come up, it changes, I think, some

         13  of the dialogue, and hopefully in the end, we end up

         14  with more qualified Building Department paid at a

         15  rate that is appropriate to the very challenging

         16  job.  So I appreciate the information.

         17                      My question is, in terms of

         18  consistency, that came up in your testimony and in

         19  the previous testimony.  And I just wanted to know,

         20  do you think it is the lack of training, is that

         21  where the challenge is, or are we just back to the

         22  general salary structure being too low, or how do

         23  you suggest, obviously legislation is one way, but

         24  how would you suggest improving some of this

         25  consistency, which is certainly a major problem?
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          2                 MR. LEE: Not withstanding, what the

          3  Building Department may think, the fact is that as I

          4  said, I am building projects in every borough, and I

          5  can guarantee you that what I build, the way I file

          6  it, the way it is constructed, and the way it is

          7  inspected, is different in each and every borough.

          8  And whether it is because of a lack of overall

          9  structure, or whether it is because of a lack more

         10  qualified people at the Borough Commissioner and

         11  Deputy Commissioner level, or maybe it is just

         12  because there is no real system within the Building

         13  Department to do it.  One of these bills says, that

         14  if you have a problem, you want it responded to

         15  timely, if you do not have the answer, you take it

         16  to the top, and then whatever that decision is, has

         17  to be disseminated so that everybody and, I am just,

         18  I know this is not responding, but I am going to

         19  tell you a stupid issue --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Go ahead.

         21                 MR. LEE: -- That our association has

         22  been working on for probably two and a half years.

         23  And this is the issue of washers and dryers.  There

         24  came a time, when in Staten Island, the plumbing

         25  inspector said, that you have to have a washer and
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          2  dryer connected, in order to get your plumbing sign

          3  off to get a temporary certificate of occupancy.  So

          4  we said, you know, why do you have to do that?  And

          5  they said, well that is the only way we will know

          6  that a licensed plumber did it.  So, whose water are

          7  they carrying?   But that is besides the point.  So

          8  we had many meetings, many resolutions.  So how this

          9  problem was resolved, is that if you take the washer

         10  and dryer off the plan, if you do not show the

         11  washer and dryer on the plan, then when the

         12  inspector comes, it does not have to be connected.

         13  But now when the people move in the house on a

         14  temporary CO, and the washer and dryer is connected,

         15  when the inspector comes back for the permanent CO

         16  and sees it, maybe he wants you then to re- amend

         17  the plan, to show it is there.  But that is not the

         18  best part of the story.  The best part of the story

         19  is that in meeting in the Commissioner's office,

         20  with the Commissioner present, we were told that

         21  this is only a problem in Staten Island.  Because I

         22  said I just built 78 houses in Queens, I did not

         23  need the washer and dryer connected.  They said, oh,

         24  well that is a Staten Island problem because the

         25  plumbing inspector in Staten Island brought it up,
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          2  the chief.  It is not a problem in the Bronx and

          3  Brooklyn and Queens or Manhattan, only in Staten

          4  Island.  And the fact that they allow these things

          5  to be differentiated, speaks volumes about the lack

          6  of centralized command and control in this agency.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you very

          8  much, Madam Chair.

          9                 MR. LEE: You are welcome.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: We have been

         12  joined by Councilwoman Diana Reyna.  Council Member

         13  James, do you have a question?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Mr. Lee, I

         15  agree with the vast majority of your testimony.  I

         16  am sitting here in my mind, debating myself with

         17  regards to whether or not a centralized system is

         18  more preferable than a de- centralized system.  I

         19  represent Brooklyn.  I represent the downtown

         20  community of Brooklyn for Green, Clinton Hill,

         21  Prospect Heights and Crown Heights, which I am sure

         22  you know, is very hot these days, where development

         23  is literally going on in just about every other

         24  block in my district.  I have my own horror story

         25  with regards to an issuance of a certificate of
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          2  occupancy in 2001, where I literally had to camp out

          3  in the Brooklyn office for two weeks at a time, and

          4  then ultimately had a temper tantrum, which resulted

          5  in the issuance of a certificate of occupancy.

          6                 That being said, the notion of moving

          7  away from a de- centralized system to a centralized

          8  system, is not something that I am comfortable with.

          9    And I guess the question is, as opposed to

         10  scrapping the system and going to a centralized

         11  system, is it just a question of more training, as

         12  my colleague mentioned, continuing education as an

         13  attorney, and you mentioned that you were an

         14  attorney, we have to get continuing legal education.

         15    Would you, is that something that you would

         16  support continuing training and continuing

         17  education, in this area?

         18                 MR. LEE: We believe, and we support

         19  that this should be a continuing education on both

         20  the side of the industry, and in with the Department

         21  of Buildings personnel.  But I do not think that

         22  anybody is suggesting that the Building Department

         23  be centralized to the extent that the borough office

         24  would close, or anything like that would change.   I

         25  think that what we are advocating, is that the

                                                            103

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  interpretation of the laws should be consistent

          3  among all the boroughs, and the only way that is

          4  going to happen, is that it comes out of Manhattan,

          5  and it goes to each of the boroughs after notice and

          6  comment, if you are going to change something, and

          7  say, this is what you do.  I mean even the forms are

          8  different in the boroughs.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: No, I

         10  understand that.  And there is inconsistency and I

         11  agree with you that there should be some

         12  consistency.

         13                 In the testimony of Mr. Kramer, where

         14  he indicates that the Bill Intro 448, contradicts

         15  the City Charter in sections of the City

         16  Administrative Code relating to budget adoption.

         17  Obviously, you disagree.  Can you give me chapter

         18  and verse cited case with regards to how you --

         19                 MR. LEE: In my testimony there are

         20  two or three cases cited, and I will be glad to

         21  share with you and the committee, the memorandum of

         22  law that will accompany our lawsuit, when it is

         23  filed.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And my last

         25  point is, as you know, in Brooklyn, in Brownsville,
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          2  I believe, a building collapsed, where a developer

          3  was, I believe he was, it is in the paper today,

          4  apparently he was shoring up some foundation next

          5  door, and the entire building collapsed.   What, is

          6  it in that particular instance, since there is all

          7  this development in my district, and again, I do not

          8  represent that area of Brooklyn, the question is,

          9  what can be done to avoid situations such as that?

         10  I mean, is that just a question of not having enough

         11  person power?  Not having enough inspectors?  Not

         12  having an enforcement mechanism?   What, if you

         13  know, if you are familiar with the facts, what

         14  caused that? How can we avoid that?

         15                 MR. LEE: I am only familiar with the

         16  facts from Channel 2 News and the paper, but I would

         17  say that certainly enforcement is not an issue,

         18  because that is after the fact.  But clearly the

         19  council might want to consider that where

         20  foundations are being dug in certain situations

         21  where under pinning, where you might undermine

         22  buildings next door, that there be a representative

         23  of the Building Department on site, during that

         24  period, to make sure that it is done properly, in

         25  the interest of the adjoining land owner is
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          2  protected.  That is a situation that could not be

          3  accomplished today, because they do not have the

          4  personnel.  But that is a budget issue.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Thank you.

          6                 MR. LEE: And then of course you would

          7  have to get an inspector there who knew what he was

          8  doing, so that is an education issue.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you,

         10  gentlemen.

         11                 MR. LEE: Thank you, Ma'am.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: That

         13  concludes our hearing. And all seven bills will be

         14  laid over.  That concludes our hearing.

         15                 (Hearing concluded at 12:25 p.m.)
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